
City of Swartz Creek 
AGENDA 

Regular Council Meeting, Monday, July 28, 2014, 7:00 P.M. 
City Hall Building, 8083 Civic Drive Swartz Creek, Michigan 48473 

1. CALL TO ORDER:

2. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:

3. ROLL CALL:

4. MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES:
4A. Council Meeting of July 14, 2014 MOTION Pg. 11 
4B. Council Meeting of July 21, 2014 MOTION Pg. 17 

5. APPROVE AGENDA:
5A. Proposed / Amended Agenda MOTION Pg. 1 

6. REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS:
City Manager’s Report (Agenda Item) MOTION Pg. 2 

Pg. 20 
Pg. 91 
Pg. 115 

6A. 
6B. 
6C. 
6D. 
6E.
6F.
6G.

Springbrook East Proposals (Agenda Item) 
Springbrook East Purchase Agreements  
Springbrook East Quit Claim Deeds 
Building and Code Enforcement Report  
Police Chief Memo Regarding Regional Service
Consumers Energy Hearing Notice

Pg. 139 

7. MEETING OPENED TO THE PUBLIC:
7A. General Public Comments

8. COUNCIL BUSINESS:
8A. Appraisal Appropriation: Golf Course RESO Pg. 9 
8B. Appraisal Appropriation: Raceway RESO. Pg. 9 
8C Springbrook East Proposal RESO Pg. 9 

9. MEETING OPENED TO THE PUBLIC:

10. REMARKS BY COUNCILMEMBERS:

11. ADJOURNMENT: MOTION 

City Council Packet 1 July 28, 2014

Pg. 150 
Pg. 152 



 
City of Swartz Creek 

CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
Regular Council Meeting of Monday, July 28, 2014 - 7:00 P.M. 

 

TO:  Honorable Mayor, Mayor Pro-Tem & Council Members 
FROM: Adam Zettel, City Manager 
DATE:   July 17, 2014 
 

OLD / ROUTINE BUSINESS – REVISITED ISSUES / PROJECTS 
 
 GENERAL MOTORS TAX APPEAL (Update) 

The appeal has been settled at the 2013 value, resulting in neither an increase or 
decrease in taxable value for the 2014 tax year. This result negates the approximately 
1% inflationary increase that was allocated to this property class this year. We 
consider this a very favorable outcome based upon the initial proposal. 

 
 MEIJER TAX APPEAL (Update) 

I am working with Meijer to see if there is a value both parties can live with that 
accurately reflects the value of the site and meets the needs of Meijer. 
 

 GOLF COURSE TAX APPEAL (Update) 
A gentleman came into the office last week and introduced himself as the new owner. 
Among other things, I asked if he was aware of this appeal since it was filed by the 
prior owner of record. He indicated that he was aware and would like to continue with 
an appeal to lesson financial obligations to the city. The appeal is as follows: 
 
2014 Taxable:   $104,038  
2014 Taxable (requested): $25,000 
 
This site includes the 7,000 square foot club house, 32.5 acres of land/improvements, 
and the 2,300 square foot residence to the east. The highest true cash value was in 
2010 and that was $961,800.  
 
Given the number of appeals that have been negotiated or granted at the MTT, I 
recommend the city appropriate funds to appraise this site. We believe it is valued 
much higher than the request indicates. For this reason, as well as the reasons 
relating to equity in payments and precedent, we believe it is worth fighting this.  
 

 RACEWAY TAX APPEAL (Update) 
Here is another one. The harness racing industry is struggling, but they still have 108.5 
acres at a signalized intersection with I-69. Their appeal information is as follows: 
 
2014 Taxable:   $904,200  
2014 Taxable (requested): $250,000 
 

City Council Packet 2 July 28, 2014



If the city agrees that non-residential land on Morrish Road off of I-69 is valued at less 
than $4,700 per acre, assuming the improvements had no value, then we have very 
large problems indeed. (Note that we would assume no such thing in any case). 
 
Like the golf course, this property keeps appealing. I believe such businesses will do 
so, beyond absurdity, until it is clear the city is resisting.  

 
 DOWNTOWN PARKING LOTS (Update) 

Work is occurring on schedule and budget. Temporary parking and delivery appears to 
be working. No other issues are known. 

 
 MAJOR STREET FUND, TRAFFIC IMPROVEMENTS (See Individual Category) 

 
 MILLER ROAD RESURFACING PROJECT (Update) 

OHM is conducting the traffic study to ascertain whether a road diet is feasible. I 
expect to have something to report in August. 

 
 WATER – SEWER ISSUES PENDING (See Individual Category) 
 SEWER REHABILITATION PROGRAM (No Change of Status) 

Liqui Force is working the village as we speak. They should be done this month 
 

 BEAR CREEK SANITARY SEWER AGREEMENT (Update) 
I am meeting with GCWWS this Friday on this issue. 
 

 KWA (No Change of Status) 
The city enacted a pass-along increase beginning after the first of the year for the 
first phase of the debt retirement for the KWA.  Costs for future service are very 
uncertain and will undoubtedly rise much. Despite that, I believe that we need to 
look at local increases to support a local capital improvement program for aging 
infrastructure. This may not amount to much, but we need to start somewhere. If we 
simply pass along increases from the other authorities, we will not even be able to 
keep up with inflationary increases for operating.  
 
On the bright side, those continuing to purchase Detroit water may find rates tripling! 
This could encourage Oakland County to join the KWA or make rates in Genesee 
County even more competitive. I have attached an interesting Free Press Article on 
the matter. 
 

 STORM SEWER (No Change of Status) 
Mr. Svrcek has been working with the Michigan Department of Environmental 
Quality on some permitting issues that every city in the urban area of the county is 
dealing with. We are not thrilled with the expectations. What appears to be the 
heavy hand of the DEQ may put us out of the business of providing many basic 
services, or at least radically changing the way we do business. This could result in 
many new ordinances and expenses regulating a variety of practices including how 
we store road salt, where we can dump street sweepings, and how residents can 
discharge a pool. We will likely be addressing this in mid-summer, but we want to 
take our time due to the wide reaching effect that this could have on the community.  
 

City Council Packet 3 July 28, 2014



 PERSONNEL:  POLICIES & PROCEDURES (No Change of Status) 
I have a couple templates that I am looking at with some of the supervisors. The police 
department has an extensive handbook that is updated regularly.  We expect to adopt 
a similar (but different) set of policies to cover all other employees. 

 
 CITY PROPERTY, 4438 MORRISH ROAD & 5017 THIRD STREET(Update) 

Asbestos has been cleared from the Morrish Road unit by certified professionals. 
Once the fire department executes specialized training within this structure, demolition 
should ensue. I expect this to be done the first week of August. 

 
 LABOR CONTRACTS, SHARED SERVICES, BUILDING & POLICE DEPARTMENTS 

(Update) 
Chief Clolinger visited Pennsylvania as planned with his peers from Mundy and Grand 
Blanc Townships. I really believe this process may start to gain some momentum. 
Mundy and Swartz Creek have been open about looking at cooperation and/or 
consolidation options for years, and it is possible that important next steps could be 
taken in the coming months. I expect Chief will debrief the city council within a month 
and offer some insight on the potential of police shared services.  

 
 SPRINGBROOK EAST & HERITAGE – VACANT LOTS (Update) 

Following are issues pending for the three Associations: 
 

SPRINGBROOK COLONY SPRINGBROOK EAST HERITAGE VILLAGE 

No outstanding issues Execute sale of 12 units 

Transfer water, sanitary 
sewer, storm sewer, streets to 
city and seek solution for 4 
vacant lots owned by city. 

 
The committee made a recommendation that I will go deeper into as an agenda 
business item. 
 
I have also been in communication with the counsel of Heritage Village. I am not sure 
why this is not moving along more quickly. We would like to have dedication 
formalized soon.  It appears that adequate surveys and language exist for the 
dedication, but there needs to be a better understanding about storm drainage 
(collection system, pond system, and transmission system).  

 
 MEIJER COMMUNITY DONATION (No Change of Status) 

Regarding the Meijer Community Donation, bids have been accepted to include 
sidewalk along Fortino and Civic Drives. This has been a desire of theater users for 
some time in order to increase ease and safety during show times.  Meijer expressed 
a desire to support this project so we expect to allocate their $10,000 to this end. 

 
 WINCHESTER WOODS LOTS (No Change of Status) 

I suggest we delay any sales or negotiations until and land sale policy is adopted. 
Prior to the last meeting, staff notified the interested parties that a sale will not be 
forthcoming anytime soon. They do not appear to be in a hurry and will await the 
council’s decision.  
 
I want to take a harder look at the development of this area. Previously, the city 
considered an assessment that would provide drainage, curbs, gutters, road 
construction, street lights and sidewalks. The price per lot was absurd. I think the 

City Council Packet 4 July 28, 2014



goal should be to make these lots buildable for quality homes. The city could 
probably achieve this with less intensive ditching and surfacing of the roads, sans 
the underground drainage system, lights, curbs, and sidewalks. This would 
drastically reduce the scope of the project.  
 
A sale of lots to an adjacent property owner could compromise the success of any 
special assessment for improvements and the ability to use these lots for single 
family homes.  
 

 NEWSLETTER (No Change of Status) 
The next is scheduled for November or late October. 
 

 UTILITY RATES (Update) 
They are going up. Agreements are being struck with the City of Detroit currently. I 
expect rate adjustments will need to follow this summer, to be in effect for the October 
or January billing.  
 

 RENTAL REGISTRATION AND INSPECTIONS (Update) 
I am working with the city attorney to pen a draft ordinance for this program. I will also 
work with Mr. Johnson to set up a tentative inspection program and fee schedule that 
the city council can then review.  
 

 WINSHALL PAVILION (No Change of Status)  
We met with the new contractor, Belfor, at the end of May. A permit is expected to be 
pulled very soon.  
 

 OTHER COMMUNICATIONS & HAPPENINGS (Update)  
 

 BUILDING REPORT (Update) 
We are finally active and current with our BS&A software packet that tracks and 
reports on permits, inspections, and enforcement occurring within the building 
department.  I have attached the first report, which includes all charges and activity 
for the first six months of the year. It has been a very busy six months. Revenues 
are over $41,000 (mostly due to the GM demolition). Expenses to Mundy Township 
are about $24,000.  
 
Moving forward, we should have monthly reports that include the same information, 
perhaps with more detail as well. 

 
 BOARDS & COMMISSIONS (See Individual Category)  
 PLANNING COMMISSION (Update) 

It is very possible that the old Marathon site will have a plan up for consideration at 
the September meeting. Stay tuned. 
 

 DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (Update) 
The DDA held its annual meeting on July 10th. They selected officers, retaining Mr. 
Mark Nemer as chair, and lamented the Meijer appeal. 
 

 ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS (Update) 

City Council Packet 5 July 28, 2014



A variance related to a fence application is in and is scheduled to be heard on 
August 13th. There is also a vacant position (alternate) that needs to be filled. 
 

 PARKS AND RECREATION COMMISSION  (Update) 
Staff is planning to work with Rowe to get a proposal ready for review by the 
commission and council for a Recreation Passport Grant. This proposal is expected 
in September and would include a scope of work (likely to include the Elms 
bathrooms), as well as a cost to prepare/execute the grant. There is no commitment 
at this time, but proceeding with the grant would require a 25-50% local match of 
city funds, donations, and/or volunteer hours. The commission and staff are very 
excited about this proposition.  
 
The commission will also be revisiting the park rules at its meeting on September 
3rd. 
 

 BOARD OF REVIEW  (Update) 
The board of review met on July 23rd. Two petitioners presented. The board also 
requested the appointment of an alternate member. The state encourages this for 
practical reasons. The first is the need to ensure the presence of at least two 
members out of the three appointees. The second is to begin training of potential 
permanent members for what is considered a specialized position.  
 
The charter limits the board to three, but the city attorney believes that alternates 
are permissible as long as the acting board is not comprised of more than three 
members at any time. With that said, staff recommends the appointment of another 
qualified board member to serve as an alternate.  

 
NEW BUSINESS / PROJECTED ISSUES & PROJECTS 
 
 APPRAISAL APPROPRIATIONS FOR TAX APPEALS (Resolution) 

There are two tax appeals that staff believes demand attention, including the golf 
course and the raceway. Please see the city old business section of the city manager’s 
report for details.  
 

 SPRINGBROOK EAST PROPOSALS (Resolution) 
The bids were received and reviewed by the committee. I expect there will be 
conversation on this, so I won’t get too detailed in this report. As a quick preface, allow 
me to expound upon the intent and process. The city acquired these lots by virtue of 
the development’s failure. There was no charge for the lots, but the development 
required infrastructure work, resulting in an assessment for all units affected, including 
the city units. With the addition of soft costs, this means that the city has vested 
$2,535.50 per unit. 
 
As indicated in resolutions from last fall, the city is not interested in maintaining or 
developing these lots directly or speculating on future values. As such, the lots were 
offered to the homeowners association at cost, with future proceeds to be used by the 
association as they saw fit to offset assessments. Due to a charter conflict, this sale did 
not happen. However, the process was started anew this spring, with the primary intent 

City Council Packet 6 July 28, 2014



being the development of the units in such a way that has the long-term interests of the 
neighborhood at heart. The request for proposals (RFQ) more specifically reflects the 
intent and process. At its core, the proposals were to demonstrate architectural 
continuity and quality.  
 
To be brief, the committee is recommending approval of all unit sales to Woodside 
Builders. An evaluation is attached that ranks each of the three proposals under the five 
criteria of the RFQ issued by the city. A ranking for each member of the committee is 
included and tallied (committee members include councilmember Shumaker, Mr. 
Johnson, Mr. Zettel, Mr. Mullen, and planning commission chair Stephens).  Woodside 
held a clear advantage in its ability to develop housing that achieves the goals of the 
proposal. Despite Woodside’s rocky relationship with the Springbrook East 
neighborhood, the association has endorsed this recommendation.   
 
The recommendation includes a pair of conditions. The first is the transfer of all units to 
the developer within 24 months at the prices indicated in the proposal. The second is 
the assurance that all phase one infrastructure that is not yet completed become the 
responsibility of Woodside (this means they will be responsible for capping the streets 
that are not yet capped).  
 
As a member of the review committee and city staff member, I support this course of 
action. Woodside can match the architecture and quality of the existing development for 
obvious reasons. They also have demonstrated existing capacity to do so. Given that 
this legal entity has successfully eliminated all miscellaneous receivables with the city 
and offered the most for said units, I support this transfer by means of the legal 
instruments drafted by the city attorney.  
 
Please note that the sale and use of funds have been purposefully separated into two 
processes. Though the offered price for units is one of the five criteria for sale, the use 
of such funds was not intended to be discussed at this point in the process as a 
mechanism to ensure the decision remains focused on the developmental quality. If this 
sale commences, the next obvious step will be to consider proceeds in excess of the 
city’s input. 
 
I did try to be brief. 
 

Council Questions, Inquiries, Requests and Comments    
   

 Tom is looking at the missing signs that have been noted on Chesterfield 
Drive.  

 We plan to make the calendars more legible for next year as it relates to 
noting the city council meetings and recycling on the same days.  

 I will be taking some time off the first week of August for personal reasons. I 
will likely have the city council packet for August 11th out by August 1st to 
ensure it is out in time. As such, you can expect a light agenda for August 11th 
and or some additions coming in the days leading up to the meeting.  

 

City Council Packet 7 July 28, 2014



 
City of Swartz Creek 

RESOLUTIONS  
Regular Council Meeting, Monday, July 28, 2014, 7:00 P.M. 

 
Resolution No. 140728-4A  MINUTES – July 14, 2014 

 
Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 

 
 

I Move the Swartz Creek City Council approve the Minutes of the Regular Council 
Meeting held Monday, July 14, 2014, to be circulated and placed on file. 

 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For:_______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________  

 
Resolution No. 140728-4B  MINUTES – July 21, 2014 

 
Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 

 
 

I Move the Swartz Creek City Council approve the Minutes of the Special Council 
Meeting held Monday, July 21, 2014, to be circulated and placed on file. 

 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For:_______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________  

 
Resolution No. 140728-5A AGENDA APPROVAL 

Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 
 
I Move the Swartz Creek City Council approve the Agenda as presented / printed / 
amended for the Regular Council Meeting of July 28, 2014, to be circulated and placed 
on file. 
 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 

 
Resolution No. 140728-6A CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 

 
 Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 

 
I Move the Swartz Creek City Council accept the City Manager’s Report of July 28, 
2014, to be circulated and placed on file. 
  
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 

City Council Packet 8 July 28, 2014



Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 
 
 
Resolution No. 140728–8A APPRAISAL APPROPRIATION: GOLF COURSE 

 
 Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 
 

I Move the City of Swartz Creek amend the budget to allocate $10,000 of general fund 
balance to the assessing department for the purpose of contesting the tax appeal by 
Stanley Frankel, for real property located at 5397 & 5499 Miller Road, costs to include 
an appraisal, legal services, and other related expenses. 
   
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 

 Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 
 
Resolution No. 140728-8B APPRAISAL APPROPRIATION: RACEWAY 
  

Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 
 

I Move the City of Swartz Creek amend the budget to allocate $12,000 of general fund 
balance to the assessing department for the purpose of contesting the tax appeal by 
Sports Creek ACQ Inc, for real property located at 4290 Morrish Road, costs to include 
an appraisal, legal services, and other related expenses. 
   
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 

 
Resolution No. 140728-8C SPRINGBROOK EAST PROPOSAL APPROVAL 
  

Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 
 

WHEREAS, the city acquired a total of 12 vacant units from street paving special 
assessment projects in Springbrook East in December, 2011, including the following 
units: 

Springbrook East Units  
Parcel Number Number  Property Address Owner 

    58-36-676-039       0 LINDSEY DR       City Swartz Creek 
58-36-676-040       0 LINDSEY DR       City Swartz Creek 
58-36-676-041       0 LINDSEY DR       City Swartz Creek 
58-36-676-042       0 LINDSEY DR       City Swartz Creek 
58-36-676-043       0 LINDSEY DR       City Swartz Creek 
58-36-676-044       0 LINDSEY DR       City Swartz Creek 
58-36-676-051       0 LINDSEY DR       City Swartz Creek 
58-36-676-053       0 LINDSEY DR       City Swartz Creek 
58-36-676-054       0 LINDSEY DR       City Swartz Creek 
58-36-676-055       0 LINDSEY DR       City Swartz Creek 

City Council Packet 9 July 28, 2014



58-36-676-056       0 LINDSEY DR       City Swartz Creek 
58-36-676-064       0 RUSSELL DR       City Swartz Creek 

 
WHEREAS, the city has determined that a public purpose exists for obtaining the lots, 
being control and guarantee for the collection of the special assessment fees, the 
preservation of property values for the existing homes in the subdivisions and the 
resolve of underground utility and storm-surface water issues; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city previously found that the long term intent is to sell the lots to 
recover assessment costs and other administrative costs that may occur and to 
preserve property values consistent with the findings within this resolution; and  
 
WHEREAS, the city issued a request for proposals to develop these units and has 
subsequently had the proposals reviewed by a committee; and 
 
WHEREAS, the committee established by council recommends sale of the units to 
Woodside Builders, with certain conditions; and 
 
WHEREAS, this recommendation has been affirmed by members of the Springbrook 
East home owners’ association board. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Swartz Creek City Council hereby 
approves the sale of all twelve units in Springbrook East to Woodside Builders, Inc. in 
accordance with the purchase agreements and quit claim deeds attached.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the council directs staff to make said sale 
instruments available for public inspection and comment for no less than 30 days, in 
accordance with city charter, at which point the sales shall be affirmed by a final vote 
of the city council. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the city council authorizes the establishment of an 
escrow account, to be funded by the buyer in the amount of $3,500 per unit sale, for 
the purpose of completing the unfinished Phase One infrastructure improvements, 
including the capping of the streets, and hereby authorizes Woodside to engage a 
contractor to complete said improvements under the supervision and approval of the 
city’s engineer. 

 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 

 
 

City Council Packet 10 July 28, 2014



 CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK 
SWARTZ CREEK, MICHIGAN 

MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING 
DATE 7/14/2014 

 
The meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. by Mayor Krueger in the Swartz Creek City 
Council Chambers, 8083 Civic Drive. 
 
Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. 
 
Councilmembers Present:  Abrams, Gilbert, Hicks, Hurt, Krueger, Porath, 

Shumaker. 
 
Councilmembers Absent:   None. 
 
Staff Present: City Manager Adam Zettel, Deputy City Clerk Deanna 

Korth, DPS Director Tom Svrcek, City Attorney Mike 
Gildner. 

  
Others Present: Boots Abrams, Bob Plumb, Tommy Butler, Jim Florence, 

Ron Schultz, Sharon Shumaker, Lou Fleury, Denny 
Pinkston, John Mullen, Patricia Mullen, Mark Thornton, 
Darla Wynn, Roberta Diaz-Cobb. 

 
 Resolution No. 140714-01       (Carried) 
 
  Motion by Councilmember Gilbert 
  Second by Councilmember Shumaker 
 
 I Move the Swartz Creek City Council excuse the absence of Councilmember Hurt 

from the June 23, 2014 meeting, due to his being on vacation. 
 
  YES: Gilbert, Hicks, Hurt, Porath, Shumaker, Abrams, Krueger. 
  NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 Resolution No. 140714-02       (Carried) 
 

Motionby Councilmember Porath 
  Second by Councilmember Hicks 
 

I Move the Swartz Creek City Council hereby approve the Minutes of the Regular 
Council Meeting, as amended, held Monday, June 23, 2014 to be circulated and 
placed on file. 

 
YES: Hicks, Hurt, Krueger, Porath, Shumaker, Abrams, Gilbert. 

 NO:   None.  Motion Declared Carried. 

City Council Packet 11 July 28, 2014



 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
  

Resolution No. 140714-03       (Carried) 
  

Motion by Mayor Pro-Tem Abrams   
Second by Councilmember Hurt 
 

I Move the Swartz Creek City Council approve the Agenda as amended, for the 
Regular Council Meeting of July 14, 2014, to be circulated and placed on file. 

 
YES: Hurt, Krueger, Porath, Shumaker, Abrams, Gilbert, Hicks. 
NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried.  

 
REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS: 
 
City Manager’s Report 
 
  Resolution No. 140714-04       (Carried) 
 

 Motion by Councilmember Shumaker 
Second by Councilmember Hurt 
 

 I Move the Swartz Creek City Council accept the City Manager’s Report of July 14, 
2014, to be circulated and placed on file. 

  
YES: Krueger, Porath, Shumaker, Abrams, Gilbert, Hicks, Hurt. 
NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 

Discussion Ensued. 
 
MEETING OPENED TO THE PUBLIC 
 
Mark Thornton, 9031 Luea Lane, and Darla Wynn, 5449 Seymour Road, expressed 
concerns about a lot of fireworks in the weeks preceding the Fourth of July holiday.  Mr. 
Thornton stated that he is concerned about the noise and possible physical dangers of this 
happening in a residential area.  Mr. Thornton spoke about the State amending their 2012 
fireworks law to allow local municipalities to pass ordinances to allow fireworks.  Mr. 
Thornton stated that it is a quality of life issue for him to have to deal with the fireworks.  
Mr. Thornton stated that he is concerned about the safety of others.  Mr. Thornton 
requested that a law or ordinance be researched for the City similar to what was recently 
passed in Burton.     
 
COUNCIL BUSINESS 
 
 
 
 

City Council Packet 12 July 28, 2014



Street Asset Management Proposal       (Carried) 
 

 Resolution No.  140714-05       
   

   Motion by Councilmember Hicks 
   Second by Mayor Pro-Tem Abrams 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Swartz Creek is the street authority, with repair and 
maintenance responsibilities, for certain major and local streets within the city, and; 

  
WHEREAS, the City of Swartz Creek recognizes that many of these streets have 
reached their useful life or are otherwise unable to be ideally maintained due to a 
lack of resources, and; 

  
WHEREAS, the preferred solution for long term, effective maintenance of a street 
network involves the use of diversified solution, asset management, and; 

  
WHEREAS, the City of Swartz Creek finds a 15 year or longer approach that 
addresses the street maintenance issue on a city-wide scale is desirable. 

  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Swartz Creek approves 
the proposal submitted by Rowe Professional Services to create an Asset 
Management/Capital Improvement Plan for an amount not to exceed $17,700, and 
further directs staff to allocate and procure such services from the city’s 
unencumbered, unreserved general fund. 
 

Discussion Ensued. 
 
  YES: Porath, Shumaker, Abrams, Gilbert, Hicks, Hurt, Krueger. 
  NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 
Property Bid Authorization 
 

Resolution No. 140714-06       (Carried)
   
  Motion by Councilmember Gilbert 
  Second by Councilmember Hurt 

 
I Move the City of Swartz Creek authorize the city manager to prepare and release 
a request for bids for the sale of the unbuildable parcel identified as vacant Miller 
Road parcel 58-63-578-018. 

 
Discussion Ensued. 
 
  YES: Shumaker, Abrams, Gilbert, Hicks, Hurt, Krueger, Porath 
  NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 
  

City Council Packet 13 July 28, 2014



Demolition Bid Approval 
 
 Resolution No. 140714-07       (Carried) 
 
  Motion by Councilmember Hurt 
  Second by Mayor Pro-Tem Abrams  

 
I Move the City of Swartz Creek approve the low bid as submitted by Woodside 
Builders, Inc. for the demolition of a single family residence located at 5017 Third 
Street and a single family residence, with a detached garage located at 4438 
Morrish Road, as outlined in the bid specifications, for the price of $18,929                        
. 

Discussion Took Place. 
 
 YES: Abrams, Gilbert, Hicks, Hurt,  Krueger, Porath, Shumaker. 
 NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 

  
Park Rules Approval        (Postponed) 
 

Resolution No. 140714-08        
  

Motion by Councilmember Porath 
Second by Councilmember Hurt 

 
I Move the City of Swartz Creek approve the park rules as attached, to be effective 
January 1, 2015.                    

 
Discussion Ensued. 

 
Resolution No. 140714-09       (Carried) 
 
 Motion by Mayor Pro-Tem Abrams 
 Second by Councilmember Hurt 
 
I Move the Swartz Creek City Council postpone approval of the park rules and 
report back to the Park Board. 
 
 YES: Hicks, Hurt, Krueger, Porath, Shumaker, Abrams, Gilbert. 
 NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 

 
Medical Marijuana Flyer        (Discussion) 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Abrams spoke about a flyer from the Michigan Wellness Center promoting 
medical marijuana.  Mr. Abrams stated several issues that he has with the procedure for 
becoming a patient.   
 
Attorney Gildner spoke about the law and the city ordinance in reference to dispensaries.   
 

City Council Packet 14 July 28, 2014



 
MEETING OPEN TO THE PUBLIC: 
 
Kal Nemer, owner of Woodside Builders, asked Councilmember Shumaker if he gave the 
specs  for the demolition of the city houses to his friend when his friend gave him a price 
for the demolition.  Mr. Shumaker advised that he did not.  Mr. Nemer stated that his 
company posted a completion bond for the demolition.  Mr. Nemer spoke about 
Springbrook.  Mr. Nemer stated that Woodside is a part of this community and is proud of 
the community.   
 
Roberta Diaz-Cobb, 5379 Seymour, spoke about an article that she read about a bike path 
and paying for a bike study.  Ms. Diaz-Cobb asked what happened with that study.  She 
was advised that the city did not have the money to match the funds.  Ms. Diaz-Cobb 
spoke about the city calendar stating that it is hard to read due to the council meetings not 
being prominent enough.  Ms. Diaz-Cobb spoke about Gil Roy’s plaza having a medical 
marijuana facility, stating that they sell all of the equipment to grow marijuana.  Ms. Diaz-
Cobb stated that Mayor Pro-Tem Abrams is not correct in his assessment of the medical 
marijuana issue.  Ms. Diaz-Cobb stated that she does not understand why it is going to 
take so long to do something with the roads.  Ms. Diaz-Cobb asked why there was no 
report on how much it would take for all the roads in the city and not just Winchester 
Village.   
 
Jim Florence, 4296 Springbrook, spoke about a helicopter in the area looking for a missing 
person.  Mr. Florence stated that he received an alert on his phone and that the missing 
person just happened to be sitting on a bench there in Springbrook.   
 
REMARKS BY COUNCILMEMBERS: 
 
Councilmember Porath spoke about the same alert call that he received about the missing 
person.  Mr. Zettel explained the new “code red” alert system.  
 
Councilmember Shumaker thanked Mayor Pro-Tem Abrams for his service in the Korean 
War as a medic.  Mr. Shumaker spoke about the councilmembers serving on many 
committees in the city.  Mr. Shumaker spoke about community members helping to get 
things done.   
 
Councilmember Hicks expressed her support for looking into a fireworks ordinance that 
would make it clearer.  Ms. Hicks spoke about the park rules stating that the Park Board is 
trying to cover all of the bases and that they need input from the council.  
 
Councilmember Gilbert asked DPS Director Svrcek about the vacant run down homes in 
the city.  Mr. Gilbert asked about a particular house on Miller Road.   
 
Councilmember Hurt stated that he would like to see some clarification on the fireworks 
ordinance.  Mr. Hurt spoke about misc. repairs that need to be done on signs and such in 
the city.  Mr. Hurt spoke about having more no parking signs around the city.  Mr. Hurt 
spoke about people parking right under the no parking signs during garage sales.  Mr. Hurt 

City Council Packet 15 July 28, 2014



spoke about Camp 911, stating that his grandson went and that Ofc. Szmansky did a nice 
job with manners and conduct.   
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Abrams apologized for his comments to Ms. Diaz-Cobb.  Mr. Abrams 
stated that he feels a fireworks ordinance is needed. 
 
Mayor Krueger stated that he would like something in place in reference to fireworks.  Mr. 
Krueger stated that his physician has a sign posted about medical marijuana that says 
“don’t even ask”.   
 
Councilmember Hicks spoke about discharging firearms in the city and that they are not 
allowed to be fired in the city. 
 
Councilmember Gilbert spoke about a gun range on Raubinger Road.   
 
Adjournment 
 

Resolution No. 140714-10       (Carried) 
 

Motion by Mayor Pro-Tem Abrams 
Second by Councilmember Shumaker   

 
I Move the City of Swartz Creek adjourn the Regular Session of the City Council 
meeting at 8:55 p.m. 

 
 YES: Unanimous Voice Vote. 

                      NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 
 
 
 
___________________________   _____________________________ 
David A. Krueger, Mayor           Deanna Korth, Deputy City Clerk 

City Council Packet 16 July 28, 2014



 CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK 
SWARTZ CREEK, MICHIGAN 

MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING 
DATE 7/21/2014 

 
The meeting was called to order at 6:00 p.m. by Mayor Krueger in the Swartz Creek City 
Council Chambers, 8083 Civic Drive. 
 
Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. 
 
Councilmembers Present:  Abrams, Gilbert, Hicks, Hurt, Krueger, Porath, 

Shumaker. 
 
Councilmembers Absent:   None. 
 
Staff Present: City Manager Adam Zettel, Deputy City Clerk Deanna 

Korth, DPS Director Tom Svrcek, City Engineer Lou 
Fleury. 

  
Others Present: Boots Abrams, Bob Plumb, Jim Florence, Ron Schultz, 

Sharon Shumaker. 
 
  
REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS: 
 
City Manager’s Report 
 
  Resolution No. 140721-01       (Carried) 
 

 Motion by Councilmember Hurt 
Second by Councilmember Porath 
 

 I Move the Swartz Creek City Council accept the City Manager’s Report of July 21, 
2014, to be circulated and placed on file. 

  
YES: Gilbert, Hicks, Hurt, Krueger, Porath, Shumaker, Abrams,  
NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 

Discussion Ensued. 
 
MEETING OPENED TO THE PUBLIC 
 
None. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

City Council Packet 17 July 28, 2014



COUNCIL BUSINESS 
 
Paving Project Change Orders       (Carried) 
 

 Resolution No.  140721-02       
   

   Motion by Councilmember Gilbert 
   Second by Councilmember Hurt 

 
I Move the City of Swartz Creek approve two additions to the current paving 
contract with L & M Landshaping, Inc., including 190’ lineal of Civic Drive and 100 
square yards of new asphalt at 8100 Civic Drive, estimated to cost $10,080, and 
further direct staff to procure such services under the under costs established by the 
existing contract and appropriate such expenses as budgeted in fiscal year 2015. 
 

Discussion Ensued. 
 
  YES: Hicks, Hurt, Kruger, Porath, Shumaker, Abrams, Gilbert. 
  NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 
MEETING OPEN TO THE PUBLIC: 
 
None. 
 
REMARKS BY COUNCILMEMBERS: 
 
Councilmember Shumaker questioned if the amphitheater is prepared for alternate parking 
during the parking lot repair.   
 
Councilmember Gilbert spoke about the chip and seal being done on county roads.   
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Abrams spoke about an article in the newspaper that implied threat to the 
owners of the golf course that the city would exercise imminent domain and take over the 
golf course for $50,000.  Mr. Abrams stated that should not have been in the paper at all.  
Mr. Abrams announced that it is his wife Boots Abrams birthday.   
 
Mayor Krueger commented on the roadwork on Miller Road between Dye and Linden 
Roads.  Mr. Krueger stated that he would like that crew to bid on the roadwork for the city 
next year since they do good work.   
 
Adjournment 
 

Resolution No. 140721-03       (Carried) 
 

Motion by Mayor Pro-Tem Abrams 
Second by Councilmember Hurt 

 

City Council Packet 18 July 28, 2014



I Move the City of Swartz Creek adjourn the Special Session of the City Council 
meeting at 6:34 p.m. 

 
 YES: Unanimous Voice Vote. 

                      NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 
 
 
 
___________________________   _____________________________ 
David A. Krueger, Mayor           Deanna Korth, Deputy City Clerk 

City Council Packet 19 July 28, 2014



9‐Jul‐14

Woodside Morgan Vliet

Reviewer 1 1 2 2

Reviewer 2 1 2 2

Reviewer 3 1 2 3

Reviewer 4 1 3 2

Reviewer 5 1 2 2

Reviewer 1 1 1 2

Reviewer 2 1 2 3

Reviewer 3 2 1 3

Reviewer 4 2 1 3

Reviewer 5 1 1 2

Reviewer 1 2 1 1

Reviewer 2 1 1 1

Reviewer 3 1 1 1

Reviewer 4 1 2 1

Reviewer 5 1 1 1

Reviewer 1 1 3 2

Reviewer 2 1 3 2

Reviewer 3 1 3 2

Reviewer 4 1 3 2

Reviewer 5 1 3 2

Reviewer 1 1 1 2

Reviewer 2 1 1 2

Reviewer 3 1 1 2

Reviewer 4 2 1 1

Reviewer 5 1 1 2

Overall Score 29 43 48

The review committee met on July 9, 2014 and evaluated the three proposals using the five evaluation 

criteria outlined in the request for proposals. The ranking was on a scale of 1 to 3, with the lower 

number being the best (the lowest score is most desirable). Note that ties were acceptable by the 

review committee and did not result in the elimination of the next available numerical ranking. For 

example, a two‐way tie for #1 in a category did not eliminate the availability of the #2 ranking. 

Architectural 

Continuity

Demonstrated 

Organizational 

Capacity

Demonstrated 

Financial Ability

Price

Demonstrated 

Experience

Springbrook East Review Committee Findings

City Council Packet 20 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 21 July 28, 2014

azettel
Text Box
Summary of Proposal Consideration Amounts and Terms



City Council Packet 22 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 23 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 24 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 25 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 26 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 27 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 28 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 29 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 30 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 31 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 32 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 33 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 34 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 35 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 36 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 37 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 38 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 39 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 40 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 41 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 42 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 43 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 44 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 45 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 46 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 47 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 48 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 49 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 50 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 51 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 52 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 53 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 54 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 55 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 56 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 57 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 58 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 59 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 60 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 61 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 62 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 63 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 64 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 65 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 66 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 67 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 68 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 69 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 70 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 71 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 72 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 73 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 74 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 75 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 76 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 77 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 78 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 79 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 80 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 81 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 82 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 83 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 84 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 85 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 86 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 87 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 88 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 89 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 90 July 28, 2014



REAL ESTATE PURCHASE AGREEMENT 
 
 This Agreement is made this ______ day of ____________, 2014, by and 
between WOODSIDE BUILDERS, INC., a Michigan corporation, with principal offices at 
5232 Morrish Road, Swartz Creek, Michigan 48473 (“Buyer”) and the CITY OF 
SWARTZ CREEK, a Michigan Municipal Corporation, with principal offices at 8083 
Civic Drive, Swartz Creek, Michigan 48473 (“Seller”). 
 
 WHEREAS, Seller is the owner of certain property described herein and desires 
to sell that property to Buyer under the terms and conditions which follow. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, Seller and Buyer hereby agree as follows: 
 
1. Property Description.  Buyer agrees to buy from Seller the property legally 

described as UNIT 39 SPRINGBROOK EAST (08) FR 5836400003 
  
2. Sales Price.  Buyer shall pay the sum of Nine Thousand Five Hundred Fifty-Six 

17/100 Dollars ($9,556.17) to Seller no later than July 31, 2016. 
 
3. Title Evidence.  The Seller agrees to quit claim the property to Buyer. 
 
4. Taxes and Assessments.  There are no unpaid real estate taxes or 

assessments on the property. 
 
5. Building Conditions and Restrictions.   
 
 (a) all construction shall take place within the building envelope and 

consistent with the architectural style specified in the Requests for 
Proposals on file with the Seller; 

 
 (b) buyer shall complete construction and obtain a final Certificate of 

Occupancy no later than July 31, 2018; 
 
 (c) buyer shall assume responsibility for all incomplete infrastructure within 

Phase One (inclusive of phase 1A & 1B) of the Project and take all action 
necessary to bring it to final development specifications no later than July 
31, 2018; and 

 
 (d) buyer shall deposit the sum of Three Thousand Five Hundred Dollars 

($3,500.00) with the City Clerk at the time of purchase, which sum shall 
serve as surety for the timely and satisfactory completion of all terms and 
conditions of this Agreement.  The City shall return this sum to Buyer if 
and when Phase One infrastructure is completed or, if Buyer defaults, 
Buyer forfeits this sum to the City. 

 
6. Default.  If Buyer defaults, all right, title and interest in the property shall revert to 

City Council Packet 91 July 28, 2014



Seller in addition to any other legal remedies that Seller may pursue. 
 
7. Heirs and Successors.  This contract binds Buyer, Seller, their personal 

representatives and heirs, and anyone succeeding to their interest in the 
property.  Buyer shall not assign this contract without Seller’s prior written 
permission. 

 
8. Contingency.  The sale is contingent upon approval by resolution of the Swartz 

Creek City Council. 
 
BUYER:      SELLER: 
 
KHALIL NEMER     CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK, a Michigan 
       Municipal Corporation, 
 
 
By: __________________________       By: _____________________________ 
 
       Its Mayor 
 
 
By: __________________________      By: _____________________________ 
 
       Its City Clerk 
 
 
Witness:      Witness: 
 
_____________________________  ________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Michael J. Gildner, City Attorney 
 

City Council Packet 92 July 28, 2014



REAL ESTATE PURCHASE AGREEMENT 
 
 This Agreement is made this ______ day of ____________, 2014, by and 
between WOODSIDE BUILDERS, INC., a Michigan corporation, with principal offices at 
5232 Morrish Road, Swartz Creek, Michigan 48473 (“Buyer”) and the CITY OF 
SWARTZ CREEK, a Michigan Municipal Corporation, with principal offices at 8083 
Civic Drive, Swartz Creek, Michigan 48473 (“Seller”). 
 
 WHEREAS, Seller is the owner of certain property described herein and desires 
to sell that property to Buyer under the terms and conditions which follow. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, Seller and Buyer hereby agree as follows: 
 
1. Property Description.  Buyer agrees to buy from Seller the property legally 

described as UNIT 40 SPRINGBROOK EAST (08) FR 5836400003 
  
2. Sales Price.  Buyer shall pay the sum of Nine Thousand Five Hundred Dollars 

($9,500.00) to Seller no later than July 31, 2016. 
 
3. Title Evidence.  The Seller agrees to quit claim the property to Buyer. 
 
4. Taxes and Assessments.  There are no unpaid real estate taxes or 

assessments on the property. 
 
5. Building Conditions and Restrictions.   
 
 (a) all construction shall take place within the building envelope and 

consistent with the architectural style specified in the Requests for 
Proposals on file with the Seller; 

 
 (b) buyer shall complete construction and obtain a final Certificate of 

Occupancy no later than July 31, 2018; 
 
 (c) buyer shall assume responsibility for all incomplete infrastructure within 

Phase One (inclusive of phase 1A & 1B) of the Project and take all action 
necessary to bring it to final development specifications no later than July 
31, 2018; and 

 
 (d) buyer shall deposit the sum of Three Thousand Five Hundred Dollars 

($3,500.00) with the City Clerk at the time of purchase, which sum shall 
serve as surety for the timely and satisfactory completion of all terms and 
conditions of this Agreement.  The City shall return this sum to Buyer if 
and when Phase One infrastructure is completed or, if Buyer defaults, 
Buyer forfeits this sum to the City. 

 
6. Default.  If Buyer defaults, all right, title and interest in the property shall revert to 

City Council Packet 93 July 28, 2014



Seller in addition to any other legal remedies that Seller may pursue. 
 
7. Heirs and Successors.  This contract binds Buyer, Seller, their personal 

representatives and heirs, and anyone succeeding to their interest in the 
property.  Buyer shall not assign this contract without Seller’s prior written 
permission. 

 
8. Contingency.  The sale is contingent upon approval by resolution of the Swartz 

Creek City Council. 
 
BUYER:      SELLER: 
 
KHALIL NEMER     CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK, a Michigan 
       Municipal Corporation, 
 
 
By: __________________________       By: _____________________________ 
 
       Its Mayor 
 
 
By: __________________________      By: _____________________________ 
 
       Its City Clerk 
 
 
Witness:      Witness: 
 
_____________________________  ________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Michael J. Gildner, City Attorney 
 

City Council Packet 94 July 28, 2014



REAL ESTATE PURCHASE AGREEMENT 
 
 This Agreement is made this ______ day of ____________, 2014, by and 
between WOODSIDE BUILDERS, INC., a Michigan corporation, with principal offices at 
5232 Morrish Road, Swartz Creek, Michigan 48473 (“Buyer”) and the CITY OF 
SWARTZ CREEK, a Michigan Municipal Corporation, with principal offices at 8083 
Civic Drive, Swartz Creek, Michigan 48473 (“Seller”). 
 
 WHEREAS, Seller is the owner of certain property described herein and desires 
to sell that property to Buyer under the terms and conditions which follow. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, Seller and Buyer hereby agree as follows: 
 
1. Property Description.  Buyer agrees to buy from Seller the property legally 

described as UNIT 41 SPRINGBROOK EAST (08) FR 5836400003 
  
2. Sales Price.  Buyer shall pay the sum of Nine Thousand Five Hundred Dollars 

($9,500.00) to Seller no later than July 31, 2016. 
 
3. Title Evidence.  The Seller agrees to quit claim the property to Buyer. 
 
4. Taxes and Assessments.  There are no unpaid real estate taxes or 

assessments on the property. 
 
5. Building Conditions and Restrictions.   
 
 (a) all construction shall take place within the building envelope and 

consistent with the architectural style specified in the Requests for 
Proposals on file with the Seller; 

 
 (b) buyer shall complete construction and obtain a final Certificate of 

Occupancy no later than July 31, 2018; 
 
 (c) buyer shall assume responsibility for all incomplete infrastructure within 

Phase One (inclusive of phase 1A & 1B) of the Project and take all action 
necessary to bring it to final development specifications no later than July 
31, 2018; and 

 
 (d) buyer shall deposit the sum of Three Thousand Five Hundred Dollars 

($3,500.00) with the City Clerk at the time of purchase, which sum shall 
serve as surety for the timely and satisfactory completion of all terms and 
conditions of this Agreement.  The City shall return this sum to Buyer if 
and when Phase One infrastructure is completed or, if Buyer defaults, 
Buyer forfeits this sum to the City. 

 
6. Default.  If Buyer defaults, all right, title and interest in the property shall revert to 

City Council Packet 95 July 28, 2014



Seller in addition to any other legal remedies that Seller may pursue. 
 
7. Heirs and Successors.  This contract binds Buyer, Seller, their personal 

representatives and heirs, and anyone succeeding to their interest in the 
property.  Buyer shall not assign this contract without Seller’s prior written 
permission. 

 
8. Contingency.  The sale is contingent upon approval by resolution of the Swartz 

Creek City Council. 
 
BUYER:      SELLER: 
 
KHALIL NEMER     CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK, a Michigan 
       Municipal Corporation, 
 
 
By: __________________________       By: _____________________________ 
 
       Its Mayor 
 
 
By: __________________________      By: _____________________________ 
 
       Its City Clerk 
 
 
Witness:      Witness: 
 
_____________________________  ________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Michael J. Gildner, City Attorney 
 

City Council Packet 96 July 28, 2014



REAL ESTATE PURCHASE AGREEMENT 
 
 This Agreement is made this ______ day of ____________, 2014, by and 
between WOODSIDE BUILDERS, INC., a Michigan corporation, with principal offices at 
5232 Morrish Road, Swartz Creek, Michigan 48473 (“Buyer”) and the CITY OF 
SWARTZ CREEK, a Michigan Municipal Corporation, with principal offices at 8083 
Civic Drive, Swartz Creek, Michigan 48473 (“Seller”). 
 
 WHEREAS, Seller is the owner of certain property described herein and desires 
to sell that property to Buyer under the terms and conditions which follow. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, Seller and Buyer hereby agree as follows: 
 
1. Property Description.  Buyer agrees to buy from Seller the property legally 

described as UNIT 42 SPRINGBROOK EAST (08) FR 5836400003 
  
2. Sales Price.  Buyer shall pay the sum of Eight Thousand Five Hundred Dollars 

($8,500.00) to Seller no later than July 31, 2016. 
 
3. Title Evidence.  The Seller agrees to quit claim the property to Buyer. 
 
4. Taxes and Assessments.  There are no unpaid real estate taxes or 

assessments on the property. 
 
5. Building Conditions and Restrictions.   
 
 (a) all construction shall take place within the building envelope and 

consistent with the architectural style specified in the Requests for 
Proposals on file with the Seller; 

 
 (b) buyer shall complete construction and obtain a final Certificate of 

Occupancy no later than July 31, 2018; 
 
 (c) buyer shall assume responsibility for all incomplete infrastructure within 

Phase One (inclusive of phase 1A & 1B) of the Project and take all action 
necessary to bring it to final development specifications no later than July 
31, 2018; and 

 
 (d) buyer shall deposit the sum of Three Thousand Five Hundred Dollars 

($3,500.00) with the City Clerk at the time of purchase, which sum shall 
serve as surety for the timely and satisfactory completion of all terms and 
conditions of this Agreement.  The City shall return this sum to Buyer if 
and when Phase One infrastructure is completed or, if Buyer defaults, 
Buyer forfeits this sum to the City. 

 
6. Default.  If Buyer defaults, all right, title and interest in the property shall revert to 

City Council Packet 97 July 28, 2014



Seller in addition to any other legal remedies that Seller may pursue. 
 
7. Heirs and Successors.  This contract binds Buyer, Seller, their personal 

representatives and heirs, and anyone succeeding to their interest in the 
property.  Buyer shall not assign this contract without Seller’s prior written 
permission. 

 
8. Contingency.  The sale is contingent upon approval by resolution of the Swartz 

Creek City Council. 
 
BUYER:      SELLER: 
 
KHALIL NEMER     CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK, a Michigan 
       Municipal Corporation, 
 
 
By: __________________________       By: _____________________________ 
 
       Its Mayor 
 
 
By: __________________________      By: _____________________________ 
 
       Its City Clerk 
 
 
Witness:      Witness: 
 
_____________________________  ________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Michael J. Gildner, City Attorney 
 

City Council Packet 98 July 28, 2014



REAL ESTATE PURCHASE AGREEMENT 
 
 This Agreement is made this ______ day of ____________, 2014, by and 
between WOODSIDE BUILDERS, INC., a Michigan corporation, with principal offices at 
5232 Morrish Road, Swartz Creek, Michigan 48473 (“Buyer”) and the CITY OF 
SWARTZ CREEK, a Michigan Municipal Corporation, with principal offices at 8083 
Civic Drive, Swartz Creek, Michigan 48473 (“Seller”). 
 
 WHEREAS, Seller is the owner of certain property described herein and desires 
to sell that property to Buyer under the terms and conditions which follow. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, Seller and Buyer hereby agree as follows: 
 
1. Property Description.  Buyer agrees to buy from Seller the property legally 

described as UNIT 43 SPRINGBROOK EAST (08) FR 5836400003 
  
2. Sales Price.  Buyer shall pay the sum of Eight Thousand Five Hundred Dollars 

($8,500.00) to Seller no later than July 31, 2016. 
 
3. Title Evidence.  The Seller agrees to quit claim the property to Buyer. 
 
4. Taxes and Assessments.  There are no unpaid real estate taxes or 

assessments on the property. 
 
5. Building Conditions and Restrictions.   
 
 (a) all construction shall take place within the building envelope and 

consistent with the architectural style specified in the Requests for 
Proposals on file with the Seller; 

 
 (b) buyer shall complete construction and obtain a final Certificate of 

Occupancy no later than July 31, 2018; 
 
 (c) buyer shall assume responsibility for all incomplete infrastructure within 

Phase One (inclusive of phase 1A & 1B) of the Project and take all action 
necessary to bring it to final development specifications no later than July 
31, 2018; and 

 
 (d) buyer shall deposit the sum of Three Thousand Five Hundred Dollars 

($3,500.00) with the City Clerk at the time of purchase, which sum shall 
serve as surety for the timely and satisfactory completion of all terms and 
conditions of this Agreement.  The City shall return this sum to Buyer if 
and when Phase One infrastructure is completed or, if Buyer defaults, 
Buyer forfeits this sum to the City. 

 
6. Default.  If Buyer defaults, all right, title and interest in the property shall revert to 

City Council Packet 99 July 28, 2014



Seller in addition to any other legal remedies that Seller may pursue. 
 
7. Heirs and Successors.  This contract binds Buyer, Seller, their personal 

representatives and heirs, and anyone succeeding to their interest in the 
property.  Buyer shall not assign this contract without Seller’s prior written 
permission. 

 
8. Contingency.  The sale is contingent upon approval by resolution of the Swartz 

Creek City Council. 
 
BUYER:      SELLER: 
 
KHALIL NEMER     CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK, a Michigan 
       Municipal Corporation, 
 
 
By: __________________________       By: _____________________________ 
 
       Its Mayor 
 
 
By: __________________________      By: _______________________________ 
 
       Its City Clerk 
 
 
Witness:      Witness: 
 
_____________________________  ________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Michael J. Gildner, City Attorney 
 

City Council Packet 100 July 28, 2014



REAL ESTATE PURCHASE AGREEMENT 
 
 This Agreement is made this ______ day of ____________, 2014, by and 
between WOODSIDE BUILDERS, INC., a Michigan corporation, with principal offices at 
5232 Morrish Road, Swartz Creek, Michigan 48473 (“Buyer”) and the CITY OF 
SWARTZ CREEK, a Michigan Municipal Corporation, with principal offices at 8083 
Civic Drive, Swartz Creek, Michigan 48473 (“Seller”). 
 
 WHEREAS, Seller is the owner of certain property described herein and desires 
to sell that property to Buyer under the terms and conditions which follow. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, Seller and Buyer hereby agree as follows: 
 
1. Property Description.  Buyer agrees to buy from Seller the property legally 

described as UNIT 44 SPRINGBROOK EAST (08) FR 5836400003 
  
2. Sales Price.  Buyer shall pay the sum of Seven Thousand Five Hundred Dollars 

($7,500.00) to Seller no later than July 31, 2016. 
 
3. Title Evidence.  The Seller agrees to quit claim the property to Buyer. 
 
4. Taxes and Assessments.  There are no unpaid real estate taxes or 

assessments on the property. 
 
5. Building Conditions and Restrictions.   
 
 (a) all construction shall take place within the building envelope and 

consistent with the architectural style specified in the Requests for 
Proposals on file with the Seller; 

 
 (b) buyer shall complete construction and obtain a final Certificate of 

Occupancy no later than July 31, 2018; 
 
 (c) buyer shall assume responsibility for all incomplete infrastructure within 

Phase One (inclusive of phase 1A & 1B) of the Project and take all action 
necessary to bring it to final development specifications no later than July 
31, 2018; and 

 
 (d) buyer shall deposit the sum of Three Thousand Five Hundred Dollars 

($3,500.00) with the City Clerk at the time of purchase, which sum shall 
serve as surety for the timely and satisfactory completion of all terms and 
conditions of this Agreement.  The City shall return this sum to Buyer if 
and when Phase One infrastructure is completed or, if Buyer defaults, 
Buyer forfeits this sum to the City. 

 
6. Default.  If Buyer defaults, all right, title and interest in the property shall revert to 

City Council Packet 101 July 28, 2014



Seller in addition to any other legal remedies that Seller may pursue. 
 
7. Heirs and Successors.  This contract binds Buyer, Seller, their personal 

representatives and heirs, and anyone succeeding to their interest in the 
property.  Buyer shall not assign this contract without Seller’s prior written 
permission. 

 
8. Contingency.  The sale is contingent upon approval by resolution of the Swartz 

Creek City Council. 
 
BUYER:      SELLER: 
 
KHALIL NEMER     CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK, a Michigan 
       Municipal Corporation, 
 
 
By: __________________________       By: _____________________________ 
 
       Its Mayor 
 
 
By: __________________________      By: _____________________________ 
 
       Its City Clerk 
 
 
Witness:      Witness: 
 
_____________________________  ________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Michael J. Gildner, City Attorney 
 

City Council Packet 102 July 28, 2014



REAL ESTATE PURCHASE AGREEMENT 
 
 This Agreement is made this ______ day of ____________, 2014, by and 
between WOODSIDE BUILDERS, INC., a Michigan corporation, with principal offices at 
5232 Morrish Road, Swartz Creek, Michigan 48473 (“Buyer”) and the CITY OF 
SWARTZ CREEK, a Michigan Municipal Corporation, with principal offices at 8083 
Civic Drive, Swartz Creek, Michigan 48473 (“Seller”). 
 
 WHEREAS, Seller is the owner of certain property described herein and desires 
to sell that property to Buyer under the terms and conditions which follow. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, Seller and Buyer hereby agree as follows: 
 
1. Property Description.  Buyer agrees to buy from Seller the property legally 

described as UNIT 51 SPRINGBROOK EAST (08) FR 5836400003 
  
2. Sales Price.  Buyer shall pay the sum of Eight Thousand Five Hundred Dollars 

($8,500.00) to Seller no later than July 31, 2016. 
 
3. Title Evidence.  The Seller agrees to quit claim the property to Buyer. 
 
4. Taxes and Assessments.  There are no unpaid real estate taxes or 

assessments on the property. 
 
5. Building Conditions and Restrictions.   
 
 (a) all construction shall take place within the building envelope and 

consistent with the architectural style specified in the Requests for 
Proposals on file with the Seller; 

 
 (b) buyer shall complete construction and obtain a final Certificate of 

Occupancy no later than July 31, 2018; 
 
 (c) buyer shall assume responsibility for all incomplete infrastructure within 

Phase One (inclusive of phase 1A & 1B) of the Project and take all action 
necessary to bring it to final development specifications no later than July 
31, 2018; and 

 
 (d) buyer shall deposit the sum of Three Thousand Five Hundred Dollars 

($3,500.00) with the City Clerk at the time of purchase, which sum shall 
serve as surety for the timely and satisfactory completion of all terms and 
conditions of this Agreement.  The City shall return this sum to Buyer if 
and when Phase One infrastructure is completed or, if Buyer defaults, 
Buyer forfeits this sum to the City. 

 
6. Default.  If Buyer defaults, all right, title and interest in the property shall revert to 

City Council Packet 103 July 28, 2014



Seller in addition to any other legal remedies that Seller may pursue. 
 
7. Heirs and Successors.  This contract binds Buyer, Seller, their personal 

representatives and heirs, and anyone succeeding to their interest in the 
property.  Buyer shall not assign this contract without Seller’s prior written 
permission. 

 
8. Contingency.  The sale is contingent upon approval by resolution of the Swartz 

Creek City Council. 
 
BUYER:      SELLER: 
 
KHALIL NEMER     CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK, a Michigan 
       Municipal Corporation, 
 
 
By: __________________________       By: _____________________________ 
 
       Its Mayor 
 
 
By: __________________________      By: _____________________________ 
 
       Its City Clerk 
 
 
Witness:      Witness: 
 
_____________________________  ________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Michael J. Gildner, City Attorney 
 

City Council Packet 104 July 28, 2014



REAL ESTATE PURCHASE AGREEMENT 
 
 This Agreement is made this ______ day of ____________, 2014, by and 
between WOODSIDE BUILDERS, INC., a Michigan corporation, with principal offices at 
5232 Morrish Road, Swartz Creek, Michigan 48473 (“Buyer”) and the CITY OF 
SWARTZ CREEK, a Michigan Municipal Corporation, with principal offices at 8083 
Civic Drive, Swartz Creek, Michigan 48473 (“Seller”). 
 
 WHEREAS, Seller is the owner of certain property described herein and desires 
to sell that property to Buyer under the terms and conditions which follow. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, Seller and Buyer hereby agree as follows: 
 
1. Property Description.  Buyer agrees to buy from Seller the property legally 

described as UNIT 53 SPRINGBROOK EAST (08) FR 5836400003 
  
2. Sales Price.  Buyer shall pay the sum of Nine Thousand Five Hundred Fifty-Six 

17/100 Dollars ($9,556.17) to Seller no later than July 31, 2016. 
 
3. Title Evidence.  The Seller agrees to quit claim the property to Buyer. 
 
4. Taxes and Assessments.  There are no unpaid real estate taxes or 

assessments on the property. 
 
5. Building Conditions and Restrictions.   
 
 (a) all construction shall take place within the building envelope and 

consistent with the architectural style specified in the Requests for 
Proposals on file with the Seller; 

 
 (b) buyer shall complete construction and obtain a final Certificate of 

Occupancy no later than July 31, 2018; 
 
 (c) buyer shall assume responsibility for all incomplete infrastructure within 

Phase One (inclusive of phase 1A & 1B) of the Project and take all action 
necessary to bring it to final development specifications no later than July 
31, 2018; and 

 
 (d) buyer shall deposit the sum of Three Thousand Five Hundred Dollars 

($3,500.00) with the City Clerk at the time of purchase, which sum shall 
serve as surety for the timely and satisfactory completion of all terms and 
conditions of this Agreement.  The City shall return this sum to Buyer if 
and when Phase One infrastructure is completed or, if Buyer defaults, 
Buyer forfeits this sum to the City. 

 
6. Default.  If Buyer defaults, all right, title and interest in the property shall revert to 

City Council Packet 105 July 28, 2014



Seller in addition to any other legal remedies that Seller may pursue. 
 
7. Heirs and Successors.  This contract binds Buyer, Seller, their personal 

representatives and heirs, and anyone succeeding to their interest in the 
property.  Buyer shall not assign this contract without Seller’s prior written 
permission. 

 
8. Contingency.  The sale is contingent upon approval by resolution of the Swartz 

Creek City Council. 
 
BUYER:      SELLER: 
 
KHALIL NEMER     CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK, a Michigan 
       Municipal Corporation, 
 
 
By: __________________________       By: _____________________________ 
 
       Its Mayor 
 
 
By: __________________________      By: _____________________________ 
 
       Its City Clerk 
 
 
Witness:      Witness: 
 
_____________________________  ________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Michael J. Gildner, City Attorney 
 

City Council Packet 106 July 28, 2014



REAL ESTATE PURCHASE AGREEMENT 
 
 This Agreement is made this ______ day of ____________, 2014, by and 
between WOODSIDE BUILDERS, INC., a Michigan corporation, with principal offices at 
5232 Morrish Road, Swartz Creek, Michigan 48473 (“Buyer”) and the CITY OF 
SWARTZ CREEK, a Michigan Municipal Corporation, with principal offices at 8083 
Civic Drive, Swartz Creek, Michigan 48473 (“Seller”). 
 
 WHEREAS, Seller is the owner of certain property described herein and desires 
to sell that property to Buyer under the terms and conditions which follow. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, Seller and Buyer hereby agree as follows: 
 
1. Property Description.  Buyer agrees to buy from Seller the property legally 

described as UNIT 54 SPRINGBROOK EAST (08) FR 5836400003 
  
2. Sales Price.  Buyer shall pay the sum of Nine Thousand Five Hundred Dollars 

($9,500.00) to Seller no later than July 31, 2016. 
 
3. Title Evidence.  The Seller agrees to quit claim the property to Buyer. 
 
4. Taxes and Assessments.  There are no unpaid real estate taxes or 

assessments on the property. 
 
5. Building Conditions and Restrictions.   
 
 (a) all construction shall take place within the building envelope and 

consistent with the architectural style specified in the Requests for 
Proposals on file with the Seller; 

 
 (b) buyer shall complete construction and obtain a final Certificate of 

Occupancy no later than July 31, 2018; 
 
 (c) buyer shall assume responsibility for all incomplete infrastructure within 

Phase One (inclusive of phase 1A & 1B) of the Project and take all action 
necessary to bring it to final development specifications no later than July 
31, 2018; and 

 
 (d) buyer shall deposit the sum of Three Thousand Five Hundred Dollars 

($3,500.00) with the City Clerk at the time of purchase, which sum shall 
serve as surety for the timely and satisfactory completion of all terms and 
conditions of this Agreement.  The City shall return this sum to Buyer if 
and when Phase One infrastructure is completed or, if Buyer defaults, 
Buyer forfeits this sum to the City. 

 
6. Default.  If Buyer defaults, all right, title and interest in the property shall revert to 

City Council Packet 107 July 28, 2014



Seller in addition to any other legal remedies that Seller may pursue. 
 
7. Heirs and Successors.  This contract binds Buyer, Seller, their personal 

representatives and heirs, and anyone succeeding to their interest in the 
property.  Buyer shall not assign this contract without Seller’s prior written 
permission. 

 
8. Contingency.  The sale is contingent upon approval by resolution of the Swartz 

Creek City Council. 
 
BUYER:      SELLER: 
 
KHALIL NEMER     CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK, a Michigan 
       Municipal Corporation, 
 
 
By: __________________________       By: _____________________________ 
 
       Its Mayor 
 
 
By: __________________________      By: _____________________________ 
 
       Its City Clerk 
 
 
Witness:      Witness: 
 
_____________________________  ________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Michael J. Gildner, City Attorney 
 

City Council Packet 108 July 28, 2014



REAL ESTATE PURCHASE AGREEMENT 
 
 This Agreement is made this ______ day of ____________, 2014, by and 
between WOODSIDE BUILDERS, INC., a Michigan corporation, with principal offices at 
5232 Morrish Road, Swartz Creek, Michigan 48473 (“Buyer”) and the CITY OF 
SWARTZ CREEK, a Michigan Municipal Corporation, with principal offices at 8083 
Civic Drive, Swartz Creek, Michigan 48473 (“Seller”). 
 
 WHEREAS, Seller is the owner of certain property described herein and desires 
to sell that property to Buyer under the terms and conditions which follow. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, Seller and Buyer hereby agree as follows: 
 
1. Property Description.  Buyer agrees to buy from Seller the property legally 

described as UNIT 55 SPRINGBROOK EAST (08) FR 5836400003 
  
2. Sales Price.  Buyer shall pay the sum of Seven Thousand Five Hundred Dollars 

($7,500.00) to Seller no later than July 31, 2016. 
 
3. Title Evidence.  The Seller agrees to quit claim the property to Buyer. 
 
4. Taxes and Assessments.  There are no unpaid real estate taxes or 

assessments on the property. 
 
5. Building Conditions and Restrictions.   
 
 (a) all construction shall take place within the building envelope and 

consistent with the architectural style specified in the Requests for 
Proposals on file with the Seller; 

 
 (b) buyer shall complete construction and obtain a final Certificate of 

Occupancy no later than July 31, 2018; 
 
 (c) buyer shall assume responsibility for all incomplete infrastructure within 

Phase One (inclusive of phase 1A & 1B) of the Project and take all action 
necessary to bring it to final development specifications no later than July 
31, 2018; and 

 
 (d) buyer shall deposit the sum of Three Thousand Five Hundred Dollars 

($3,500.00) with the City Clerk at the time of purchase, which sum shall 
serve as surety for the timely and satisfactory completion of all terms and 
conditions of this Agreement.  The City shall return this sum to Buyer if 
and when Phase One infrastructure is completed or, if Buyer defaults, 
Buyer forfeits this sum to the City. 

 
6. Default.  If Buyer defaults, all right, title and interest in the property shall revert to 

City Council Packet 109 July 28, 2014



Seller in addition to any other legal remedies that Seller may pursue. 
 
7. Heirs and Successors.  This contract binds Buyer, Seller, their personal 

representatives and heirs, and anyone succeeding to their interest in the 
property.  Buyer shall not assign this contract without Seller’s prior written 
permission. 

 
8. Contingency.  The sale is contingent upon approval by resolution of the Swartz 

Creek City Council. 
 
BUYER:      SELLER: 
 
KHALIL NEMER     CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK, a Michigan 
       Municipal Corporation, 
 
 
By: __________________________       By: _____________________________ 
 
       Its Mayor 
 
 
By: __________________________      By: _____________________________ 
 
       Its City Clerk 
 
 
Witness:      Witness: 
 
_____________________________  ________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Michael J. Gildner, City Attorney 
 

City Council Packet 110 July 28, 2014



REAL ESTATE PURCHASE AGREEMENT 
 
 This Agreement is made this ______ day of ____________, 2014, by and 
between WOODSIDE BUILDERS, INC., a Michigan corporation, with principal offices at 
5232 Morrish Road, Swartz Creek, Michigan 48473 (“Buyer”) and the CITY OF 
SWARTZ CREEK, a Michigan Municipal Corporation, with principal offices at 8083 
Civic Drive, Swartz Creek, Michigan 48473 (“Seller”). 
 
 WHEREAS, Seller is the owner of certain property described herein and desires 
to sell that property to Buyer under the terms and conditions which follow. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, Seller and Buyer hereby agree as follows: 
 
1. Property Description.  Buyer agrees to buy from Seller the property legally 

described as UNIT 56 SPRINGBROOK EAST (08) FR 5836400003 
  
2. Sales Price.  Buyer shall pay the sum of Seven Thousand Five Hundred Dollars 

($7,500.00) to Seller no later than July 31, 2016. 
 
3. Title Evidence.  The Seller agrees to quit claim the property to Buyer. 
 
4. Taxes and Assessments.  There are no unpaid real estate taxes or 

assessments on the property. 
 
5. Building Conditions and Restrictions.   
 
 (a) all construction shall take place within the building envelope and 

consistent with the architectural style specified in the Requests for 
Proposals on file with the Seller; 

 
 (b) buyer shall complete construction and obtain a final Certificate of 

Occupancy no later than July 31, 2018; 
 
 (c) buyer shall assume responsibility for all incomplete infrastructure within 

Phase One (inclusive of phase 1A & 1B) of the Project and take all action 
necessary to bring it to final development specifications no later than July 
31, 2018; and 

 
 (d) buyer shall deposit the sum of Three Thousand Five Hundred Dollars 

($3,500.00) with the City Clerk at the time of purchase, which sum shall 
serve as surety for the timely and satisfactory completion of all terms and 
conditions of this Agreement.  The City shall return this sum to Buyer if 
and when Phase One infrastructure is completed or, if Buyer defaults, 
Buyer forfeits this sum to the City. 

 
6. Default.  If Buyer defaults, all right, title and interest in the property shall revert to 

City Council Packet 111 July 28, 2014



Seller in addition to any other legal remedies that Seller may pursue. 
 
7. Heirs and Successors.  This contract binds Buyer, Seller, their personal 

representatives and heirs, and anyone succeeding to their interest in the 
property.  Buyer shall not assign this contract without Seller’s prior written 
permission. 

 
8. Contingency.  The sale is contingent upon approval by resolution of the Swartz 

Creek City Council. 
 
BUYER:      SELLER: 
 
KHALIL NEMER     CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK, a Michigan 
       Municipal Corporation, 
 
 
By: __________________________       By: _____________________________ 
 
       Its Mayor 
 
 
By: __________________________      By: _____________________________ 
 
       Its City Clerk 
 
 
Witness:      Witness: 
 
_____________________________  ________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Michael J. Gildner, City Attorney 
 

City Council Packet 112 July 28, 2014



REAL ESTATE PURCHASE AGREEMENT 
 
 This Agreement is made this ______ day of ____________, 2014, by and 
between WOODSIDE BUILDERS, INC., a Michigan corporation, with principal offices at 
5232 Morrish Road, Swartz Creek, Michigan 48473 (“Buyer”) and the CITY OF 
SWARTZ CREEK, a Michigan Municipal Corporation, with principal offices at 8083 
Civic Drive, Swartz Creek, Michigan 48473 (“Seller”). 
 
 WHEREAS, Seller is the owner of certain property described herein and desires 
to sell that property to Buyer under the terms and conditions which follow. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, Seller and Buyer hereby agree as follows: 
 
1. Property Description.  Buyer agrees to buy from Seller the property legally 

described as UNIT 64 SPRINGBROOK EAST (08) FR 5836400003 
  
2. Sales Price.  Buyer shall pay the sum of Nine Thousand Five Hundred Fifty-Six 

16/100 Dollars ($9,556.16) to Seller no later than July 31, 2016. 
 
3. Title Evidence.  The Seller agrees to quit claim the property to Buyer. 
 
4. Taxes and Assessments.  There are no unpaid real estate taxes or 

assessments on the property. 
 
5. Building Conditions and Restrictions.   
 
 (a) all construction shall take place within the building envelope and 

consistent with the architectural style specified in the Requests for 
Proposals on file with the Seller; 

 
 (b) buyer shall complete construction and obtain a final Certificate of 

Occupancy no later than July 31, 2018; 
 
 (c) buyer shall assume responsibility for all incomplete infrastructure within 

Phase One (inclusive of phase 1A & 1B) of the Project and take all action 
necessary to bring it to final development specifications no later than July 
31, 2018; and 

 
 (d) buyer shall deposit the sum of Three Thousand Five Hundred Dollars 

($3,500.00) with the City Clerk at the time of purchase, which sum shall 
serve as surety for the timely and satisfactory completion of all terms and 
conditions of this Agreement.  The City shall return this sum to Buyer if 
and when Phase One infrastructure is completed or, if Buyer defaults, 
Buyer forfeits this sum to the City. 

 
6. Default.  If Buyer defaults, all right, title and interest in the property shall revert to 

City Council Packet 113 July 28, 2014



Seller in addition to any other legal remedies that Seller may pursue. 
 
7. Heirs and Successors.  This contract binds Buyer, Seller, their personal 

representatives and heirs, and anyone succeeding to their interest in the 
property.  Buyer shall not assign this contract without Seller’s prior written 
permission. 

 
8. Contingency.  The sale is contingent upon approval by resolution of the Swartz 

Creek City Council. 
 
BUYER:      SELLER: 
 
KHALIL NEMER     CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK, a Michigan 
       Municipal Corporation, 
 
 
By: __________________________       By: _____________________________ 
 
       Its Mayor 
 
 
By: __________________________      By: _____________________________ 
 
       Its City Clerk 
 
 
Witness:      Witness: 
 
_____________________________  ________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Michael J. Gildner, City Attorney 
 

City Council Packet 114 July 28, 2014



QUITCLAIM DEED 
 
 On September ___, 2014, the City of Swartz Creek, a home rule city, whose 
address is 8083 Civic Drive, Swartz Creek, Michigan 48473  (“Grantor”), quitclaims to 
Woodside Builders, whose address is 5232 Morrish Road, Swartz Creek, Michigan 
48473, (“Grantee”), the real property commonly known as Unit 39 of Springbrook East, 
in the City of Swartz Creek, County of Genesee, Michigan, and described as: 
 

UNIT 39 SPRINGBROOK EAST (08) FR 5836400003 
 

(“the Property”), Parcel No. 58-36-676-039 
 
For a sum of Nine Thousand Five Hundred Fifty-Six 17/100 Dollars ($9,556.17), 
      
subject to any easements and building and use restrictions of record and the lien of 
taxes not yet due and payable. 
 
Grantor grants to Grantee the right to make all divisions of record under Section 108 of 
the Land Division Act, PA 228 of 1967. 
 
This property may be located within the vicinity of farmland or a farm operation. 
Generally accepted agricultural and management practices which may generate noise, 
dust, odors, and other associated conditions may be used and are protected by the 
Michigan Right to Farm Act. 
 
This transfer is exempt from real estate transfer taxes under MCL 207.526(a) and 
207.505(a). 
 
This transfer is being made to Grantee with the understanding and agreement that 
Grantee will use and develop the Property as specified in the Purchase Agreement 
executed by the parties and on file at City Offices and, in the event that the Property is 
not used and developed as such, all right, title and interest in the Property will revert to 
the City. 
 
      City of Swartz Creek 
 
Dated: ________    ________________________________ 
      By:         
 

City Council Packet 115 July 28, 2014



STATE OF MICHIGAN} 
COUNTY OF GENESEE} 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this       day of July 2014, by the 
City of Swartz Creek, by __________________, Its ______________.                                       
 
                                                                               
Notary Public, Genesee County, Michigan 
Acting in Genesee County, Michigan 
My commission expires: 
 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
When Recorded Return to    Prepared By: 
and send subsequent tax bills to:   Michael J. Gildner 
       Simen, Figura & Parker, P.L.C. 
       5206 Gateway Centre, Suite 200 
       Flint, Michigan 48507 
       (810) 235-9000 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
Tax Parcel No. ___________ Recording Fee $_______   Revenue Stamps 
 

City Council Packet 116 July 28, 2014



QUITCLAIM DEED 
 
 On September ___, 2014, the City of Swartz Creek, a home rule city, whose 
address is 8083 Civic Drive, Swartz Creek, Michigan 48473  (“Grantor”), quitclaims to 
Woodside Builders, whose address is 5232 Morrish Road, Swartz Creek, Michigan 
48473, (“Grantee”), the real property commonly known as Unit 40 of Springbrook East, 
in the City of Swartz Creek, County of Genesee, Michigan, and described as: 
 

UNIT 40 SPRINGBROOK EAST (08) FR 5836400003 
 

(“the Property”), Parcel No. 58-36-676-040 
 
For a sum of Nine Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($9,500.00), 
      
subject to any easements and building and use restrictions of record and the lien of 
taxes not yet due and payable. 
 
Grantor grants to Grantee the right to make all divisions of record under Section 108 of 
the Land Division Act, PA 228 of 1967. 
 
This property may be located within the vicinity of farmland or a farm operation. 
Generally accepted agricultural and management practices which may generate noise, 
dust, odors, and other associated conditions may be used and are protected by the 
Michigan Right to Farm Act. 
 
This transfer is exempt from real estate transfer taxes under MCL 207.526(a) and 
207.505(a). 
 
This transfer is being made to Grantee with the understanding and agreement that 
Grantee will use and develop the Property as specified in the Purchase Agreement 
executed by the parties and on file at City Offices and, in the event that the Property is 
not used and developed as such, all right, title and interest in the Property will revert to 
the City. 
 
      City of Swartz Creek 
 
Dated: ________    ________________________________ 
      By:         
 

City Council Packet 117 July 28, 2014



STATE OF MICHIGAN} 
COUNTY OF GENESEE} 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this       day of July 2014, by the 
City of Swartz Creek, by __________________, Its ______________.                                       
 
                                                                               
Notary Public, Genesee County, Michigan 
Acting in Genesee County, Michigan 
My commission expires: 
 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
When Recorded Return to    Prepared By: 
and send subsequent tax bills to:   Michael J. Gildner 
       Simen, Figura & Parker, P.L.C. 
       5206 Gateway Centre, Suite 200 
       Flint, Michigan 48507 
       (810) 235-9000 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
Tax Parcel No. ___________ Recording Fee $_______   Revenue Stamps 
 

City Council Packet 118 July 28, 2014



QUITCLAIM DEED 
 
 On September ___, 2014, the City of Swartz Creek, a home rule city, whose 
address is 8083 Civic Drive, Swartz Creek, Michigan 48473  (“Grantor”), quitclaims to 
Woodside Builders, whose address is 5232 Morrish Road, Swartz Creek, Michigan 
48473, (“Grantee”), the real property commonly known as Unit 41 of Springbrook East, 
in the City of Swartz Creek, County of Genesee, Michigan, and described as: 
 

UNIT 41 SPRINGBROOK EAST (08) FR 5836400003 
 

(“the Property”), Parcel No. 58-36-676-041 
 
For a sum of Nine Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($9,500.00), 
      
subject to any easements and building and use restrictions of record and the lien of 
taxes not yet due and payable. 
 
Grantor grants to Grantee the right to make all divisions of record under Section 108 of 
the Land Division Act, PA 228 of 1967. 
 
This property may be located within the vicinity of farmland or a farm operation. 
Generally accepted agricultural and management practices which may generate noise, 
dust, odors, and other associated conditions may be used and are protected by the 
Michigan Right to Farm Act. 
 
This transfer is exempt from real estate transfer taxes under MCL 207.526(a) and 
207.505(a). 
 
This transfer is being made to Grantee with the understanding and agreement that 
Grantee will use and develop the Property as specified in the Purchase Agreement 
executed by the parties and on file at City Offices and, in the event that the Property is 
not used and developed as such, all right, title and interest in the Property will revert to 
the City. 
 
      City of Swartz Creek 
 
Dated: ________    ________________________________ 
      By:         
 

City Council Packet 119 July 28, 2014



STATE OF MICHIGAN} 
COUNTY OF GENESEE} 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this       day of July 2014, by the 
City of Swartz Creek, by __________________, Its ______________.                                       
 
                                                                               
Notary Public, Genesee County, Michigan 
Acting in Genesee County, Michigan 
My commission expires: 
 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
When Recorded Return to    Prepared By: 
and send subsequent tax bills to:   Michael J. Gildner 
       Simen, Figura & Parker, P.L.C. 
       5206 Gateway Centre, Suite 200 
       Flint, Michigan 48507 
       (810) 235-9000 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
Tax Parcel No. ___________ Recording Fee $_______   Revenue Stamps 
 

City Council Packet 120 July 28, 2014



QUITCLAIM DEED 
 
 On September ___, 2014, the City of Swartz Creek, a home rule city, whose 
address is 8083 Civic Drive, Swartz Creek, Michigan 48473  (“Grantor”), quitclaims to 
Woodside Builders, whose address is 5232 Morrish Road, Swartz Creek, Michigan 
48473, (“Grantee”), the real property commonly known as Unit 42 of Springbrook East, 
in the City of Swartz Creek, County of Genesee, Michigan, and described as: 
 

UNIT 42 SPRINGBROOK EAST (08) FR 5836400003 
 

(“the Property”), Parcel No. 58-36-676-042 
 
For a sum of Eight Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($8,500.00), 
      
subject to any easements and building and use restrictions of record and the lien of 
taxes not yet due and payable. 
 
Grantor grants to Grantee the right to make all divisions of record under Section 108 of 
the Land Division Act, PA 228 of 1967. 
 
This property may be located within the vicinity of farmland or a farm operation. 
Generally accepted agricultural and management practices which may generate noise, 
dust, odors, and other associated conditions may be used and are protected by the 
Michigan Right to Farm Act. 
 
This transfer is exempt from real estate transfer taxes under MCL 207.526(a) and 
207.505(a). 
 
This transfer is being made to Grantee with the understanding and agreement that 
Grantee will use and develop the Property as specified in the Purchase Agreement 
executed by the parties and on file at City Offices and, in the event that the Property is 
not used and developed as such, all right, title and interest in the Property will revert to 
the City. 
 
      City of Swartz Creek 
 
Dated: ________    ________________________________ 
      By:         
 

City Council Packet 121 July 28, 2014



STATE OF MICHIGAN} 
COUNTY OF GENESEE} 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this       day of July 2014, by the 
City of Swartz Creek, by __________________, Its ______________.                                       
 
                                                                               
Notary Public, Genesee County, Michigan 
Acting in Genesee County, Michigan 
My commission expires: 
 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
When Recorded Return to    Prepared By: 
and send subsequent tax bills to:   Michael J. Gildner 
       Simen, Figura & Parker, P.L.C. 
       5206 Gateway Centre, Suite 200 
       Flint, Michigan 48507 
       (810) 235-9000 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
Tax Parcel No. ___________ Recording Fee $_______   Revenue Stamps 
 

City Council Packet 122 July 28, 2014



QUITCLAIM DEED 
 
 On September ___, 2014, the City of Swartz Creek, a home rule city, whose 
address is 8083 Civic Drive, Swartz Creek, Michigan 48473  (“Grantor”), quitclaims to 
Woodside Builders, whose address is 5232 Morrish Road, Swartz Creek, Michigan 
48473, (“Grantee”), the real property commonly known as Unit 43 of Springbrook East, 
in the City of Swartz Creek, County of Genesee, Michigan, and described as: 
 

UNIT 43 SPRINGBROOK EAST (08) FR 5836400003 
 

(“the Property”), Parcel No. 58-36-676-043 
 
For a sum of Eight Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($8,500.00), 
      
subject to any easements and building and use restrictions of record and the lien of 
taxes not yet due and payable. 
 
Grantor grants to Grantee the right to make all divisions of record under Section 108 of 
the Land Division Act, PA 228 of 1967. 
 
This property may be located within the vicinity of farmland or a farm operation. 
Generally accepted agricultural and management practices which may generate noise, 
dust, odors, and other associated conditions may be used and are protected by the 
Michigan Right to Farm Act. 
 
This transfer is exempt from real estate transfer taxes under MCL 207.526(a) and 
207.505(a). 
 
This transfer is being made to Grantee with the understanding and agreement that 
Grantee will use and develop the Property as specified in the Purchase Agreement 
executed by the parties and on file at City Offices and, in the event that the Property is 
not used and developed as such, all right, title and interest in the Property will revert to 
the City. 
 
      City of Swartz Creek 
 
Dated: ________    ________________________________ 
      By:         
 

City Council Packet 123 July 28, 2014



STATE OF MICHIGAN} 
COUNTY OF GENESEE} 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this       day of July 2014, by the 
City of Swartz Creek, by __________________, Its ______________.                                       
 
                                                                               
Notary Public, Genesee County, Michigan 
Acting in Genesee County, Michigan 
My commission expires: 
 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
When Recorded Return to    Prepared By: 
and send subsequent tax bills to:   Michael J. Gildner 
       Simen, Figura & Parker, P.L.C. 
       5206 Gateway Centre, Suite 200 
       Flint, Michigan 48507 
       (810) 235-9000 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
Tax Parcel No. ___________ Recording Fee $_______   Revenue Stamps 
 

City Council Packet 124 July 28, 2014



QUITCLAIM DEED 
 
 On September ___, 2014, the City of Swartz Creek, a home rule city, whose 
address is 8083 Civic Drive, Swartz Creek, Michigan 48473  (“Grantor”), quitclaims to 
Woodside Builders, whose address is 5232 Morrish Road, Swartz Creek, Michigan 
48473, (“Grantee”), the real property commonly known as Unit 44 of Springbrook East, 
in the City of Swartz Creek, County of Genesee, Michigan, and described as: 
 

UNIT 44 SPRINGBROOK EAST (08) FR 5836400003 
 

(“the Property”), Parcel No. 58-36-676-044 
 
For a sum of Seven Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($7,500.00), 
      
subject to any easements and building and use restrictions of record and the lien of 
taxes not yet due and payable. 
 
Grantor grants to Grantee the right to make all divisions of record under Section 108 of 
the Land Division Act, PA 228 of 1967. 
 
This property may be located within the vicinity of farmland or a farm operation. 
Generally accepted agricultural and management practices which may generate noise, 
dust, odors, and other associated conditions may be used and are protected by the 
Michigan Right to Farm Act. 
 
This transfer is exempt from real estate transfer taxes under MCL 207.526(a) and 
207.505(a). 
 
This transfer is being made to Grantee with the understanding and agreement that 
Grantee will use and develop the Property as specified in the Purchase Agreement 
executed by the parties and on file at City Offices and, in the event that the Property is 
not used and developed as such, all right, title and interest in the Property will revert to 
the City. 
 
      City of Swartz Creek 
 
Dated: ________    ________________________________ 
      By:         
 

City Council Packet 125 July 28, 2014



STATE OF MICHIGAN} 
COUNTY OF GENESEE} 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this       day of July 2014, by the 
City of Swartz Creek, by __________________, Its ______________.                                       
 
                                                                               
Notary Public, Genesee County, Michigan 
Acting in Genesee County, Michigan 
My commission expires: 
 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
When Recorded Return to    Prepared By: 
and send subsequent tax bills to:   Michael J. Gildner 
       Simen, Figura & Parker, P.L.C. 
       5206 Gateway Centre, Suite 200 
       Flint, Michigan 48507 
       (810) 235-9000 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
Tax Parcel No. ___________ Recording Fee $_______   Revenue Stamps 
 

City Council Packet 126 July 28, 2014



QUITCLAIM DEED 
 
 On September ___, 2014, the City of Swartz Creek, a home rule city, whose 
address is 8083 Civic Drive, Swartz Creek, Michigan 48473  (“Grantor”), quitclaims to 
Woodside Builders, whose address is 5232 Morrish Road, Swartz Creek, Michigan 
48473, (“Grantee”), the real property commonly known as Unit 51 of Springbrook East, 
in the City of Swartz Creek, County of Genesee, Michigan, and described as: 
 

UNIT 51 SPRINGBROOK EAST (08) FR 5836400003 
 

(“the Property”), Parcel No. 58-36-676-051 
 
For a sum of Eight Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($8,500.00), 
      
subject to any easements and building and use restrictions of record and the lien of 
taxes not yet due and payable. 
 
Grantor grants to Grantee the right to make all divisions of record under Section 108 of 
the Land Division Act, PA 228 of 1967. 
 
This property may be located within the vicinity of farmland or a farm operation. 
Generally accepted agricultural and management practices which may generate noise, 
dust, odors, and other associated conditions may be used and are protected by the 
Michigan Right to Farm Act. 
 
This transfer is exempt from real estate transfer taxes under MCL 207.526(a) and 
207.505(a). 
 
This transfer is being made to Grantee with the understanding and agreement that 
Grantee will use and develop the Property as specified in the Purchase Agreement 
executed by the parties and on file at City Offices and, in the event that the Property is 
not used and developed as such, all right, title and interest in the Property will revert to 
the City. 
 
      City of Swartz Creek 
 
Dated: ________    ________________________________ 
      By:         
 

City Council Packet 127 July 28, 2014



STATE OF MICHIGAN} 
COUNTY OF GENESEE} 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this       day of July 2014, by the 
City of Swartz Creek, by __________________, Its ______________.                                       
 
                                                                               
Notary Public, Genesee County, Michigan 
Acting in Genesee County, Michigan 
My commission expires: 
 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
When Recorded Return to    Prepared By: 
and send subsequent tax bills to:   Michael J. Gildner 
       Simen, Figura & Parker, P.L.C. 
       5206 Gateway Centre, Suite 200 
       Flint, Michigan 48507 
       (810) 235-9000 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
Tax Parcel No. ___________ Recording Fee $_______   Revenue Stamps 
 

City Council Packet 128 July 28, 2014



QUITCLAIM DEED 
 
 On September ___, 2014, the City of Swartz Creek, a home rule city, whose 
address is 8083 Civic Drive, Swartz Creek, Michigan 48473  (“Grantor”), quitclaims to 
Woodside Builders, whose address is 5232 Morrish Road, Swartz Creek, Michigan 
48473, (“Grantee”), the real property commonly known as Unit 53 of Springbrook East, 
in the City of Swartz Creek, County of Genesee, Michigan, and described as: 
 

UNIT 53 SPRINGBROOK EAST (08) FR 5836400003 
 

(“the Property”), Parcel No. 58-36-676-053 
 
For a sum of Nine Thousand Five Hundred Fifty-Six 17/100 Dollars ($9,556.17), 
      
subject to any easements and building and use restrictions of record and the lien of 
taxes not yet due and payable. 
 
Grantor grants to Grantee the right to make all divisions of record under Section 108 of 
the Land Division Act, PA 228 of 1967. 
 
This property may be located within the vicinity of farmland or a farm operation. 
Generally accepted agricultural and management practices which may generate noise, 
dust, odors, and other associated conditions may be used and are protected by the 
Michigan Right to Farm Act. 
 
This transfer is exempt from real estate transfer taxes under MCL 207.526(a) and 
207.505(a). 
 
This transfer is being made to Grantee with the understanding and agreement that 
Grantee will use and develop the Property as specified in the Purchase Agreement 
executed by the parties and on file at City Offices and, in the event that the Property is 
not used and developed as such, all right, title and interest in the Property will revert to 
the City. 
 
      City of Swartz Creek 
 
Dated: ________    ________________________________ 
      By:         
 

City Council Packet 129 July 28, 2014



STATE OF MICHIGAN} 
COUNTY OF GENESEE} 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this       day of July 2014, by the 
City of Swartz Creek, by __________________, Its ______________.                                       
 
                                                                               
Notary Public, Genesee County, Michigan 
Acting in Genesee County, Michigan 
My commission expires: 
 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
When Recorded Return to    Prepared By: 
and send subsequent tax bills to:   Michael J. Gildner 
       Simen, Figura & Parker, P.L.C. 
       5206 Gateway Centre, Suite 200 
       Flint, Michigan 48507 
       (810) 235-9000 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
Tax Parcel No. ___________ Recording Fee $_______   Revenue Stamps 
 

City Council Packet 130 July 28, 2014



QUITCLAIM DEED 
 
 On September ___, 2014, the City of Swartz Creek, a home rule city, whose 
address is 8083 Civic Drive, Swartz Creek, Michigan 48473  (“Grantor”), quitclaims to 
Woodside Builders, whose address is 5232 Morrish Road, Swartz Creek, Michigan 
48473, (“Grantee”), the real property commonly known as Unit 54 of Springbrook East, 
in the City of Swartz Creek, County of Genesee, Michigan, and described as: 
 

UNIT 54 SPRINGBROOK EAST (08) FR 5836400003 
 

(“the Property”), Parcel No. 58-36-676-054 
 
For a sum of Nine Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($9,500.00), 
      
subject to any easements and building and use restrictions of record and the lien of 
taxes not yet due and payable. 
 
Grantor grants to Grantee the right to make all divisions of record under Section 108 of 
the Land Division Act, PA 228 of 1967. 
 
This property may be located within the vicinity of farmland or a farm operation. 
Generally accepted agricultural and management practices which may generate noise, 
dust, odors, and other associated conditions may be used and are protected by the 
Michigan Right to Farm Act. 
 
This transfer is exempt from real estate transfer taxes under MCL 207.526(a) and 
207.505(a). 
 
This transfer is being made to Grantee with the understanding and agreement that 
Grantee will use and develop the Property as specified in the Purchase Agreement 
executed by the parties and on file at City Offices and, in the event that the Property is 
not used and developed as such, all right, title and interest in the Property will revert to 
the City. 
 
      City of Swartz Creek 
 
Dated: ________    ________________________________ 
      By:         
 

City Council Packet 131 July 28, 2014



STATE OF MICHIGAN} 
COUNTY OF GENESEE} 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this       day of July 2014, by the 
City of Swartz Creek, by __________________, Its ______________.                                       
 
                                                                               
Notary Public, Genesee County, Michigan 
Acting in Genesee County, Michigan 
My commission expires: 
 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
When Recorded Return to    Prepared By: 
and send subsequent tax bills to:   Michael J. Gildner 
       Simen, Figura & Parker, P.L.C. 
       5206 Gateway Centre, Suite 200 
       Flint, Michigan 48507 
       (810) 235-9000 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
Tax Parcel No. ___________ Recording Fee $_______   Revenue Stamps 
 

City Council Packet 132 July 28, 2014



QUITCLAIM DEED 
 
 On September ___, 2014, the City of Swartz Creek, a home rule city, whose 
address is 8083 Civic Drive, Swartz Creek, Michigan 48473  (“Grantor”), quitclaims to 
Woodside Builders, whose address is 5232 Morrish Road, Swartz Creek, Michigan 
48473, (“Grantee”), the real property commonly known as Unit 55 of Springbrook East, 
in the City of Swartz Creek, County of Genesee, Michigan, and described as: 
 

UNIT 55 SPRINGBROOK EAST (08) FR 5836400003 
 

(“the Property”), Parcel No. 58-36-676-055 
 
For a sum of Seven Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($7,500.00), 
      
subject to any easements and building and use restrictions of record and the lien of 
taxes not yet due and payable. 
 
Grantor grants to Grantee the right to make all divisions of record under Section 108 of 
the Land Division Act, PA 228 of 1967. 
 
This property may be located within the vicinity of farmland or a farm operation. 
Generally accepted agricultural and management practices which may generate noise, 
dust, odors, and other associated conditions may be used and are protected by the 
Michigan Right to Farm Act. 
 
This transfer is exempt from real estate transfer taxes under MCL 207.526(a) and 
207.505(a). 
 
This transfer is being made to Grantee with the understanding and agreement that 
Grantee will use and develop the Property as specified in the Purchase Agreement 
executed by the parties and on file at City Offices and, in the event that the Property is 
not used and developed as such, all right, title and interest in the Property will revert to 
the City. 
 
      City of Swartz Creek 
 
Dated: ________    ________________________________ 
      By:         
 

City Council Packet 133 July 28, 2014



STATE OF MICHIGAN} 
COUNTY OF GENESEE} 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this       day of July 2014, by the 
City of Swartz Creek, by __________________, Its ______________.                                       
 
                                                                               
Notary Public, Genesee County, Michigan 
Acting in Genesee County, Michigan 
My commission expires: 
 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
When Recorded Return to    Prepared By: 
and send subsequent tax bills to:   Michael J. Gildner 
       Simen, Figura & Parker, P.L.C. 
       5206 Gateway Centre, Suite 200 
       Flint, Michigan 48507 
       (810) 235-9000 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
Tax Parcel No. ___________ Recording Fee $_______   Revenue Stamps 
 

City Council Packet 134 July 28, 2014



QUITCLAIM DEED 
 
 On September ___, 2014, the City of Swartz Creek, a home rule city, whose 
address is 8083 Civic Drive, Swartz Creek, Michigan 48473  (“Grantor”), quitclaims to 
Woodside Builders, whose address is 5232 Morrish Road, Swartz Creek, Michigan 
48473, (“Grantee”), the real property commonly known as Unit 56 of Springbrook East, 
in the City of Swartz Creek, County of Genesee, Michigan, and described as: 
 

UNIT 56 SPRINGBROOK EAST (08) FR 5836400003 
 

(“the Property”), Parcel No. 58-36-676-056 
 
For a sum of Seven Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($7,500.00), 
      
subject to any easements and building and use restrictions of record and the lien of 
taxes not yet due and payable. 
 
Grantor grants to Grantee the right to make all divisions of record under Section 108 of 
the Land Division Act, PA 228 of 1967. 
 
This property may be located within the vicinity of farmland or a farm operation. 
Generally accepted agricultural and management practices which may generate noise, 
dust, odors, and other associated conditions may be used and are protected by the 
Michigan Right to Farm Act. 
 
This transfer is exempt from real estate transfer taxes under MCL 207.526(a) and 
207.505(a). 
 
This transfer is being made to Grantee with the understanding and agreement that 
Grantee will use and develop the Property as specified in the Purchase Agreement 
executed by the parties and on file at City Offices and, in the event that the Property is 
not used and developed as such, all right, title and interest in the Property will revert to 
the City. 
 
      City of Swartz Creek 
 
Dated: ________    ________________________________ 
      By:         
 

City Council Packet 135 July 28, 2014



STATE OF MICHIGAN} 
COUNTY OF GENESEE} 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this       day of July 2014, by the 
City of Swartz Creek, by __________________, Its ______________.                                       
 
                                                                               
Notary Public, Genesee County, Michigan 
Acting in Genesee County, Michigan 
My commission expires: 
 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
When Recorded Return to    Prepared By: 
and send subsequent tax bills to:   Michael J. Gildner 
       Simen, Figura & Parker, P.L.C. 
       5206 Gateway Centre, Suite 200 
       Flint, Michigan 48507 
       (810) 235-9000 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
Tax Parcel No. ___________ Recording Fee $_______   Revenue Stamps 
 

City Council Packet 136 July 28, 2014



QUITCLAIM DEED 
 
 On September ___, 2014, the City of Swartz Creek, a home rule city, whose 
address is 8083 Civic Drive, Swartz Creek, Michigan 48473  (“Grantor”), quitclaims to 
Woodside Builders, whose address is 5232 Morrish Road, Swartz Creek, Michigan 
48473, (“Grantee”), the real property commonly known as Unit 64 of Springbrook East, 
in the City of Swartz Creek, County of Genesee, Michigan, and described as: 
 

UNIT 64 SPRINGBROOK EAST (08) FR 5836400003 
 

(“the Property”), Parcel No. 58-36-676-064 
 
For a sum of Nine Thousand Five Hundred Fifty-Six 16/100 Dollars ($9,556.16), 
      
subject to any easements and building and use restrictions of record and the lien of 
taxes not yet due and payable. 
 
Grantor grants to Grantee the right to make all divisions of record under Section 108 of 
the Land Division Act, PA 228 of 1967. 
 
This property may be located within the vicinity of farmland or a farm operation. 
Generally accepted agricultural and management practices which may generate noise, 
dust, odors, and other associated conditions may be used and are protected by the 
Michigan Right to Farm Act. 
 
This transfer is exempt from real estate transfer taxes under MCL 207.526(a) and 
207.505(a). 
 
This transfer is being made to Grantee with the understanding and agreement that 
Grantee will use and develop the Property as specified in the Purchase Agreement 
executed by the parties and on file at City Offices and, in the event that the Property is 
not used and developed as such, all right, title and interest in the Property will revert to 
the City. 
 
      City of Swartz Creek 
 
Dated: ________    ________________________________ 
      By:         
 

City Council Packet 137 July 28, 2014



STATE OF MICHIGAN} 
COUNTY OF GENESEE} 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this       day of July 2014, by the 
City of Swartz Creek, by __________________, Its ______________.                                       
 
                                                                               
Notary Public, Genesee County, Michigan 
Acting in Genesee County, Michigan 
My commission expires: 
 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
When Recorded Return to    Prepared By: 
and send subsequent tax bills to:   Michael J. Gildner 
       Simen, Figura & Parker, P.L.C. 
       5206 Gateway Centre, Suite 200 
       Flint, Michigan 48507 
       (810) 235-9000 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
Tax Parcel No. ___________ Recording Fee $_______   Revenue Stamps 
 

City Council Packet 138 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 139 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 140 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 141 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 142 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 143 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 144 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 145 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 146 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 147 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 148 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 149 July 28, 2014



City of Swartz Creek  
Department of Police 

Chief RICK CLOLINGER 
8100-A Civic Drive 

Phone: (810)-635-4401          Swartz Creek, Michigan  48473     Fax: (810)-635-3728 

TO: Adam Zettel, City Manager 
FROM: Rick Clolinger, Chief of Police 
DATED: July 24, 2014 
REF:   Consolidation of Police Services 

On July 15th, 2014 Chief Dan Akinson of Mundy Township Police Department, Chief Dave Stamm of 
Grand Blanc Township Police Department, and myself went to the Northern York County Regional 
Police in Dover, PA to obtain information as it pertains to police consolidation and the operation of 
regional policing. 

On Tuesday July 15th, 2014 at 7pm we met with Chief Mark Bentzel of the Northern York County 
Regional Police Department at his office located at 1445 East Canal Rd. Dover, PA. 

We attended the Departments Board of Commissioners meeting which lasted approximately 40 
minutes. We were the only public attending this meeting so at the conclusion of this meeting we had 
an open forum with the board, and were able to ask questions of the board which proved to be very 
informative. This lasted approximately for 1 hour. 

The Northern York County Regional Police Department covers 8 municipalities, and the board is 
comprised of 1 elected official from each municipality. They meet once a month, and the Police Chief 
gives a monthly report and discusses any issues of the Police Department. The board operates under 
Act 180, which later became the “Intergovernmental Cooperation Act”. We were able to ask questions 
of the board and they left us with lots inside information on the operation and function of the board of 
commissioners. 

On July 16th, 2014 we meet with Chief Mark Bentzel at his office, he explained how his police 
department functioned and was managed by his administration. His department consists of the Chief, 
(2) Lieutenants, (5) Sergeants, (6) Corporals, (4) Criminal Investigators, and 35 Patrol Officers. They 
service 70,000 residents, covering 150 sq. miles, and respond to more than 28,000 calls for service 
per year. 

In the afternoon of Wednesday July 16th, 2014 we met with Carl Segatti whom is the former Police 
Chief at the Department, he gave us valuable information concerning his time served as police chief 
and his current employment as a Law Enforcement Consultant for Regional Policing. 

We returned to Michigan on Thursday July 17th, 2014 armed with valuable information to be able to 
pass on and help in our vision of police consolidation and shared services. 

City Council Packet 150 July 28, 2014



I do plan to bring more information to the Swartz Creek City Council within the next 30 days on the 
possibility of police consolidation and or shared police services with Mundy Township Police 
Department. 
 

        
Please feel free to contact me with any questions or concerns. 
 
 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
________________ 
RICK CLOLINGER 
Chief of Police 

 
 
                                           

City Council Packet 151 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 152 July 28, 2014



City Council Packet 153 July 28, 2014


	2014-07-28 Council Packet
	2014-7-14 July-14 Council Minutes
	2014-7-21 July-21 Special Council Minutes
	2014-07-28 Council Packet
	2014-07-28, Council Mtg Template
	TO:  Honorable Mayor, Mayor Pro-Tem & Council Members
	OLD / ROUTINE BUSINESS – REVISITED ISSUES / PROJECTS

	SPE Review
	Woodside
	SCAN9731_000
	Woodside

	JV
	Morgan
	PA 39
	PA 40
	PA 41
	PA 42
	PA 43
	PA 44
	PA 51
	PA 53
	PA 54
	PA 55
	PA 56
	PA 64
	QCD 39
	QCD 40
	QCD 41
	QCD 42
	QCD 43
	QCD 44
	QCD 51
	QCD 53
	QCD 54
	QCD 55
	QCD 56
	QCD 64
	Bldg Report


	Letter to City Manager 7-24-14
	Department of Police
	Chief RICK CLOLINGER
	Phone: (810)-635-4401                   Swartz Creek, Michigan  48473                     Fax: (810)-635-3728


	20140724120244



